Trademarks

Autel[®], MaxiSys[®], MaxiDAS[®], MaxiScan[®], MaxiTPMS[®], MaxiRecorder[®], and MaxiCheck[®] are trademarks of Autel Intelligent Technology Corp., Ltd., registered in China, the United States and other countries. All other marks are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

Copyright Information

No part of this manual may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise without the prior written permission of Autel.

Disclaimer of Warranties and Limitation of Liabilities

All information, specifications and illustrations in this manual are based on the latest information available at the time of printing.

Autel reserves the right to make changes at any time without notice. While information of this manual has been carefully checked for accuracy, no guarantee is given for the completeness and correctness of the contents, including but not limited to the product specifications, functions, and illustrations.

Autel will not be liable for any direct, special, incidental, indirect damages or any economic consequential damages. (including lost profits)

IMPORTANT

Before operating or maintaining this unit, please read this manual carefully, paying extra attention to the safety warnings and precautions.

For Services and Support:



pro.autel.com www.autel.com



1-855-288-3587/1-855-AUTELUS (North America) 0086-755-86147779 (China)



support@autel.com

For details, please refer to the Service Procedures in this manual.

Safety Information

For your own safety and the safety of others, and to prevent damage to the device and vehicles upon which it is used, it is important that the safety instructions presented throughout this manual be read and understood by all persons operating or coming into contact with the device.

There are various procedures, techniques, tools, and parts for servicing vehicles, as well as in the skill of the person doing the work. Because of the vast number of test applications and variations in the products that can be tested with this equipment, we cannot possibly anticipate or provide advice or safety messages to cover every circumstance. It is the automotive technician's responsibility to be knowledgeable of the system being tested. It is crucial to use proper service methods and test procedures. It is essential to perform tests in an appropriate and acceptable manner that does not endanger your safety, the safety of others in the work area, the device being used, or the vehicle being tested.

Before using the device, always refer to and follow the safety messages and applicable test procedures provided by the manufacturer of the vehicle or equipment being tested. Use the device only as described in this manual. Read, understand, and follow all safety messages and instructions in this manual.

Safety Messages

Safety messages are provided to help prevent personal injury and equipment damage. All safety messages are introduced by a signal word indicating the hazard level.

Indicates an imminently hazardous situation which, if not avoided, will result in death or serious injury to the operator or to bystanders.

Indicates a potentially hazardous situation which, if not avoided, could result in death or serious injury to the operator or to bystanders.

Safety Instructions

The safety messages herein cover situations Autel is aware of. Autel cannot know, evaluate or advise you in regards of all possible hazards. You must be certain that any condition or service procedure encountered does not jeopardize your personal safety.

When an engine is operating, keep the service area WELL VENTILATED or attach a building exhaust removal system to the engine exhaust system. Engines produce

carbon monoxide, an odorless, poisonous gas that causes slower reaction time and can lead to serious personal injury or loss of life.

A It is not advised to use headphones at a high volume

Listening at high volumes for long periods of time may result in loss of hearing.

▲ Safety Warnings

- Always perform automotive testing in a safe environment.
- Wear safety eye protection that meets ANSI standards.
- Keep clothing, hair, hands, tools, test equipment, etc. away from all moving or hot engine parts.
- Operate the vehicle in a well-ventilated work area, for exhaust gases are poisonous.
- Put the transmission in PARK (for automatic transmission) or NEUTRAL (for manual transmission) and make sure the parking brake is engaged.
- Put blocks in front of the drive wheels and never leave the vehicle unattended while testing.
- Be extra cautious when working around the ignition coil, distributor cap, ignition wires and spark plugs. These components create hazardous voltages when the engine is running.
- Keep a fire extinguisher suitable for gasoline, chemical, and electrical fires nearby.
- Do not connect or disconnect any test equipment while the ignition is on or the engine is running.
- Keep the test equipment dry, clean, free from oil, water or grease. Use a mild detergent on a clean cloth to clean the outside of the equipment as necessary.
- Do not drive the vehicle and operate the test equipment at the same time. Any distraction may cause an accident.
- Refer to the service manual for the vehicle being serviced and adhere to all diagnostic procedures and precautions. Failure to do so may result in personal injury or damage to the test equipment.
- To avoid damaging the test equipment or generating false data, make sure the vehicle battery is fully charged and the connection to the vehicle DLC is clean and secure.

Do not place the test equipment on the distributor of the vehicle. Strong electro-magnetic interference can damage the equipment.

CONTENTS

1	USING THIS MANUAL	6
	CONVENTIONS	6
2	GENERAL INTRODUCTION	8
	MAXISYS DISPLAY TABLET	8
	VCI – J2534 ECU Programming Device	12
	Accessories Kit	15
3	GETTING STARTED	17
	Power Up	17
	Power Down	21
	Configure Printing	21
4	DIAGNOSTICS	23
	VEHICLE COMMUNICATION AND SELECTION	23
	DIAGNOSTICS SCREEN LAYOUT	33
	AUTO SCAN	40
	READ AND ERASE CODES	43
	LIVE DATA	45
	ACTIVE TEST	52
	ECU INFORMATION	54
	SPECIAL FUNCTIONS	55
	Programming	56
	GENERIC OBD II OPERATIONS	60
	DIAGNOSTIC REPORT	64
	EXIT DIAGNOSTICS	69
5	REPAIR ASSIST	70
	ACCESS VEHICLE SYSTEMS	70
	VIEW THE DTCS	70
	DTC GUIDE	72
	TECHNICAL SERVICE BULLETIN	73
	DTC ANALYSIS	74
	TEST PLAN	75
	TROUBLESHOOTING	75
	COMPONENT MEASUREMENT	76
	Relevant Cases	76
6	SERVICE	78

		70
	ELECTRIC PARKING BRAKE (EPB) SERVICE	
	TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING SYSTEM (TPMS) SERVICE	
	BATTERY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (BMS) SERVICE	80
	DIESEL PARTICLE FILTER (DPF) SERVICE	80
	IMMOBILIZER (IMMO) SERVICE	81
	STEERING ANGLE SENSOR (SAS) SERVICE	82
7	REMOTE PROGRAMMING	83
	GENERAL INTRODUCTION	83
	GETTING STARTED	84
	OPERATION	85
8	MAXIFIX	92
	GETTING STARTED	92
	NAVIGATION	92
	OPERATIONS	94
9	DATA MANAGER	108
	VEHICLE HISTORY	109
	WORKSHOP INFORMATION	111
	CUSTOMER	112
	IMAGE	112
	PDF	113
	Review Data	
	UNINSTALL APPS	114
		114
10	SETTINGS	115
10		115
11		110
12		121
12		121
		100
	BT PAIRING	
	UPDATE	
13	ADAS	
14	SUPPORT	126
	PRODUCT REGISTRATION	126
	APPLICATION INTERFACE	126

MY ACCOUNT	127
COMPLAINT	127
DATA LOGGING	128
TRAINING	128
15 REMOTE DESKTOP	129
16 QUICK LINK	130
17 MAXIVIEWER	131
18 MAXIVIDEO	133
Accessories	133
OPERATIONS	137
19 MAXIMALL	138
OPERATIONS	138
20 MAINTENANCE AND SERVICE	144
MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS	144
TROUBLESHOOTING CHECKLIST	144
About Battery Usage	145
Service Procedures	146
21 COMPLIANCE INFORMATION	149
22 WARRANTY	151
12-Month Limited Warranty	151

1 Using This Manual

This manual contains device usage instructions.

Some illustrations shown in this manual may contain modules and optional equipment that are not included in your system.

1.1 Conventions

The following conventions are used.

1.1.1 Bold Text

Bold text is used to highlight selectable items such as buttons and menu options.

Example:

• Tap **OK**.

1.1.2 Notes and Important Messages

Notes

A **NOTE** provides helpful information such as additional explanations, tips, and comments.

Example:

⊘ NOTE

New batteries reach full capacity after approximately 3 to 5 charging and discharging cycles.

Important

IMPORTANT indicates a situation that if not avoided may result in damage to the tablet or vehicle.

Example:

IMPORTANT

Keep the cable away from heat, oil, sharp edges and moving parts. Replace damaged cables immediately.

1.1.3 Hyperlink

Hyperlinks or links that take you to other related articles, procedures, and illustrations are available in electronic documents. Blue italic text indicates a selectable hyperlink and blue underlined text indicates a website link or an email address link.

1.1.4 Illustrations

Illustrations used in this manual are samples, and the actual testing screen may vary for each vehicle being tested. Observe the menu titles and on-screen instructions to make correct option selection.

1.1.5 Procedures

An arrow icon indicates a procedure.

Example:

- > To use the camera:
 - 1. Tap the **Camera** button. The camera screen opens.
 - 2. Focus the image to be captured in the view finder.
 - 3. Tap the inner white circle. The view finder now shows the captured picture and auto-saves the taken photo.
 - 4. Tap the thumbnail image on the top right corner of the screen to view the stored image.
 - 5. Tap the **Back** or **Home** button to exit the camera application.

2 General Introduction

MaxiSys MS909 is a multi-platform diagnostic solution comprised of a powerful 9.7-inch TFT-LCD touchscreen Android-based tablet, a VCI communication and diagnostic unit, as well as cloud-based repair instructions and expert advice. As an intelligent diagnostic and information system, MaxiSys MS909 not only displays the relevant repairs gathered from experienced industry experts, but provides step-by-step guidance to ensure the repair is done correctly and efficiently.

There are two main components to the MaxiSys system:

- Display Tablet the central processor and monitor for the system.
- VCI Vehicle Communication Interface.

This manual describes the construction and operation of these devices and how they work together to deliver diagnostic solutions.

2.1 MaxiSys Display Tablet

2.1.1 Functional Description



Figure 2-1 MaxiSys Tablet Front View

- 1. 9.7" TFT-LCD Capacitive Touch Screen
- 2. Ambient Light Sensor detects ambient brightness.
- 3. Power LED refer to Table 2-1 Power LED Description for details.
- 4. Front Camera

5. Built-in Microphone

LED	Color	Description		
	Green	 Lights green when the display tablet is being charged and the battery level is above 90%. Lights green when the Display Tablet is powered on and the battery level is above 15%. 		
Power	Yellow	Lights yellow when the Display Tablet is being charged and the battery level is below 90%.		
	Red	Lights red when the Display Tablet is powered on and the battery level is below 15%		

Table 2-1 Power LED Description



Figure 2-2 MaxiSys Tablet Back View

- 6. Speaker
- 7. Collapsible Stand extends from the back to allow hands-free viewing of the tablet
- 8. Rear Camera
- 9. Camera Flash



Figure 2-3 MaxiSys Tablet Top View

- 10. Head Phone Jack
- 11. USB Port
- 12. USB Port
- 13. Mini USB Port cannot be used with the USB Port simultaneously.
- 14. HDMI (High-Definition Multimedia Interface) Port
- 15. Micro SD Card Slot
- 16. DC Power Supply Input Port
- 17. Lock/Power Button long press to turn on and off the Display Tablet, or short press to lock the screen.

2.1.2 Power Sources

The tablet can receive power from any of the following sources:

- Internal Battery Pack
- AC/DC Power Supply
- Vehicle Power

IMPORTANT

Do not charge the battery when the temperature is lower than $0^{\circ}C$ ($0^{\circ}F$) or higher than $45^{\circ}C$ ($113^{\circ}F$).

Internal Battery Pack

The tablet can be powered with the internal rechargeable battery, which if fully charged can provide sufficient power for about 8 hours of continuous operation.

AC/DC Power Supply – using power adapter

The tablet can be powered from an external outlet using the AC/DC power adapter. The AC/DC power supply also charges the internal battery pack.

Vehicle Power

The tablet can be powered from the cigarette lighter or other DC power port on the test vehicle through a direct cable connection. The vehicle power cable connects to the DC power supply port on the top side of the display unit.

2.1.3 Technical Specifications

Item	Description	
Operating System	Android 7.0	
Processor	Samsung Exynos8895V 8-core Processor (2.3GHz Quad-core Mongoose + 1.7GHz Quad-core A53)	
Memory	4GB RAM & 128GB On-board Memory	
Display	9.7-inch TFT-LCD with 1536 x 2048 resolution & capacitive touch screen	
Connectivity	 WiFix2 (802.11 a/b/g/n/ac 2x2 MIMO) BT v.2.1 + EDR GPS USB 2.0 (TWO USB HOST Type A, ONE USB mini device) SD Card (Support up to 64GB) HDMI 2.0 	
Camera	 Rear: 16 Megapixel, Autofocus with Flashlight Front: 5.0 Megapixel 	
Sensors	Gravity Accelerometer, Ambient Light Sensor (ALS)	
Audio Input / Output Power and Battery	 Microphone Dual Speakers 3-Band 3.5 mm stereo/standard headset jack 15000mAH 3.8V lithium-polymer battery Charging via 12V AC/DC power supply with the tomograture between 0°C and 45°C 	
Input Voltage	12V/3A Adapter	
Operating Temp.	0 to 50°C (32 to 122°F)	

Table 2-2 Tablet Specifications

Item	Description	
Storage Temp.	-20 to 60°C (-4 to 140°F)	
Dimensions (WxHxD)	304.4 mm (11.98") x 227.8 mm (8.97") x 42.5 mm (1.67")	
Weight	1.66kg (3.66lb.)	
Protocols	DoIP, PLC J2497, ISO-15765, SAE-J1939, ISO-14229 UDS, SAE-J2411 Single Wire Can(GMLAN), ISO-11898-2, ISO-11898-3, SAE-J2819 (TP20), TP16, ISO-9141, ISO-14230, SAE-J2610 (Chysler SCI), UART Echo Byte, SAE-J2809 (Honda Diag-H), SAE-J2740 (GM ALDL), SAE-J1567 (CCD BUS), Ford UBP, Nissan DDL UART with Clock, BMW DS2, BMW DS1, SAE J2819 (VAG KW81), KW82, SAE J1708, SAE-J1850 PWM (Ford SCP), SAE-J1850 VPW (GM Class2)	

2.2 VCI – J2534 ECU Programming Device

2.2.1 Functional Description



Figure 2-4 J2534 ECU Programming Device

- 1. DC Power Supply Input Port
- 2. Vehicle Data Connector
- 3. Vehicle LED
 - Flashes green when the device is communicating with the vehicle system

Do not disconnect the programming device while this status light is on! If the flash programming procedure is interrupted while the vehicle ECU is blank or only partially programmed, the module may be unrecoverable.

- 4. Connection LED
 - Lights solid green when the device is connected to the tablet via the USB cable
 - Lights solid blue when the device is connected to the tablet via Wi-Fi or Bluetooth
- 5. Power LED
 - Lights solid green when the device is powered on
 - Blinks red when system failure occurs
 - Lights amber automatically at power up when the device is self-testing
- 6. USB Port

J2534 Programming Capability

The J2534 ECU Programming Device is a SAE J2534-1 & -2 compliant PassThru programming interface device. Using the updated OEM software, it is capable of replacing the existing software/firmware in the Electronic Control Units (ECU), programming new ECUs and fixing software-controlled drivability issues and emission issues.

Communication

The J2534 ECU programming device supports BT and USB communications. It can transmit vehicle data to the tablet with or without a physical connection. The working range of the transmitter through BT communication is 210 feet (about 70 m). A signal lost due to moving out of range automatically restores itself when the tablet unit is brought closer to the VCI unit.

2.2.2 Power Sources

The J2534 programming device can receive power from both of the following sources:

- Vehicle Power
- AC/DC Power Supply

Vehicle Power

The J2534 programming device operates on 12-volt vehicle power, which it receives through the vehicle data connection port. The device powers on whenever it is connected to an OBD II/EOBD compliant data link connector (DLC). For non OBD

II/EOBD compliant vehicles, the device can be powered from a cigarette lighter or other suitable power port on the test vehicle using the auxiliary power cable.

AC/DC Power Supply

The J2534 programming device can be powered from a wall socket using the AC/DC power adapter.

2.2.3 Technical Specifications

Item	Description	
Communications	Wireless BT V2.1 + EDR	
	USB 2.0	
Wireless Frequency	Wireless BT V2.1+EDR, 2.4GHz	
Input Voltage Range	12 VDC to 24 VDC	
Supply Current	170 mA 12 VDC	
	100 mA @ 24 VDC	
Operating Temp.	0°C to 60°C (ambient)	
Storage Temp.	-65°C to 100°C (ambient)	
Dimensions (L x W x H)	149 mm (5.87") x 86 mm (3.38") x 35 mm (1.28")	
Weight	290 g (0.64 lb.)	

Table 2-1 J2534 ECU Programming Device Specifications

NOTE

For additional information, please refer to the accompanied user manual for the J2534 ECU Programming Device.

2.3.1 Main Cable

The VCI device can be powered through the Main Cable when connected to an OBD II/EOBD compliant vehicle. The Main Cable connects the VCI device to the vehicle DLC, through which the VCI device can transmit vehicle data to the tablet.



Figure 2-7 Main Cable – 1.5m in Length

2.3.2 OBD I Adapters

The OBD I adapters are for Non-OBD II vehicles. The adapter used depends on the type of vehicle being tested. The most common adapters are shown below (Adapters may be sold separately, please contact your distributor for details).



2.3.3 Other Accessories



Standard 2.0 USB Cable

Connects the tablet to the VCI unit.



AC/DC External Power Adapter

Connects the tablet to the external DC power port for power supply.

Cigarette Lighter



Provides power to the tablet or the VCI device through connection to the vehicle cigarette lighter receptacle, as some non-OBD II vehicles cannot provide power via the DLC connection.



Clipper Cable

Provides power to the tablet or the VCI device through connection to the vehicle battery.



Lighter Fuse x2

A safety device for the cigarette lighter.

3 Getting Started

Make sure the tablet has sufficient power or is connected to the external power supply (see 2.1.2 Power Sources on page 10).

3.1 Power Up

Press and hold the Lock/Power button on the right side of the tablet to switch the unit on. The system boots up and displays the MaxiSys Main Screen.



Figure 0-1 Sample Main Screen Menu

- 1. Application Buttons
- 2. Locator and Navigation Buttons
- 3. Status Icons

The screen is locked by default upon startup. It is recommended to lock the screen when not in use to protect information in the system and conserve the power.

Almost all operations on the tablet are controlled through the touchscreen. The touchscreen navigation is menu driven, which allows you to quickly locate the test procedure, or data that you need, through a series of questions and options. Detailed descriptions of the menu structures are found in the chapters for each application.

3.1.1 Application Buttons

The table below briefly describes each of the applications in the MaxiSys system.

Name Button		Description	
Diagnostics		Accesses the diagnostic functions. See Diagnostics on page 23.	
Service Accesses special functions menu. Se on page 77.		Accesses special functions menu. See <u>Service</u> on page 77.	
Remote Programming Accesses remote programming request See <u>Remote Programming</u> on page 82.		Accesses remote programming request menu. See <u>Remote Programming</u> on page 82.	
MaxiFix Provides an extensive resource of MaxiFix MaxiFix on page 91. MaxiFix		Provides an extensive resource of repair techniques and diagnostics information. See <u>MaxiFix</u> on page 91.	
Measurement Image: Second		Point of entry to measuring vehicle system parameters such as voltage, resistance, current, and monitors signal activities.	
Data Manager Accesses saved repair shop, cus and test records. See Data Manage 106. Data Manage Data Manage Data Manage Data Manage		Accesses saved repair shop, customer and vehicle data including vehicle diagnostic details and test records. See <u>Data Manager</u> on page 106.	
Settings Accesses the system settings menu ar tablet menu. See 错误!未找到引用源。Spage 113.		Accesses the system settings menu and general tablet menu. See 错误!未找到引用源。 <u>Settings</u> on page 113.	
Update Accesses system software upd Update on page 117.		Accesses system software update menu. See Update on page 117.	
VCI Manager VCI Manager Accesses VCI connection menu. See 错引用源。 <u>VCI Manager</u> on page 119.		Accesses VCI connection menu. See 错误!未找到 引用源。 <u>VCI Manager</u> on page 119.	

Table 0-1 Applications

Name	Button	Description	
ADAS	ADAS	Accesses ADAS menu. See <u>ADAS</u> on page 123.	
Support	-¥-	Synchronizes Autel's online service database with the MaxiSys tablet. See <u>Support</u> on page 124.	
Remote Desktop		Configures your unit to receive remote support using the TeamViewer application. See 错误!未找 到引用源。 <u>Remote Desktop</u> on page 127.	
Quick Link	Ð	Provides associated website bookmarks to allow quick access to product update, service, support and other information. See <u>Quick Link</u> on page 128.	
MaxiViewer	FQ	Provides a quick search for supported functions and/or vehicles. See <u>MaxiViewer</u> on page 129.	
MaxiVideo	Í	Configures the unit to operate as a video scope device by connecting to an Imager head cable for close vehicle inspections. See <u>MaxiVideo</u> on page 131.	
MaxiMall	MALL	Purchase software updates directly from the tablet. See MaxiMall on page 136.	

3.1.2 Locator and Navigation Buttons

Operations of the Navigation buttons at the bottom of the screen are described in the table below:

Name	Button	Description		
Locator		Indicates the location of the screen. Swipe the screen left or right to view the previous or next screen.		

Table 0-2 Locator and Navigation Buttons

Name Button		Description	
Back	•	Returns to the previous screen.	
Android Home		Returns to Android System's Home screen.	
Recent Apps		Displays a list of applications that are currently running. Tap an app icon to launch. Remove an app by swiping it to the right.	
Browser	9	Launches the Chrome Internet browser.	
Camera	Ó	Tap the icon to open the camera; or press and hold it to capture a screenshot of the tablet. The saved files are auto-stored in the Data Manager application for later review.	
Display & Sound		Adjusts the brightness of the screen and the volume of the audio output.	
MaxiSys Home	M	Returns to MaxiSys Main Screen.	
VCI VC		Opens the VCI Manager application. A green check mark at the bottom right corner indicates the VCI device is connected, while a red cross icon will display if connection fails. The battery status icon displays the remaining VCI power.	
MaxiSys Shortcut		Returns to the Diagnostics screen.	
Service		Returns to the Service screen.	

> To use the camera

- 1. Tap the **Camera** button. The camera screen opens.
- 2. Focus the image to be captured in the view finder.
- 3. Tap the inner blue circle. The view finder now shows the captured picture and auto-saves the taken photo.
- 4. Tap the thumbnail image on the top right corner of the screen to view the stored image.
- 5. Tap the **Back** or **Home** button to exit the camera application.

Refer to Android documentation for additional information.

3.1.3 System Status Icons

Your MaxiSys tablet is fully functional with standard status icons of the Android operating system. Refer to Android documentation for more information.

3.2 Power Down

Before you shut down the tablet, terminate all vehicle communications to avoid possible ECM errors on some vehicles. If such shutdown is attempted, a warning message will display to remind you to exit the Diagnostics application first.

> To power down the MaxiSys tablet

- 1. Press and hold the Lock/Power button.
- 2. Tap Power off option.
- 3. Tap **OK**.

3.2.1 Reboot System

In case of system crash, long press the Lock/Power button and tap **Restart** to reboot the system.

3.3 Configure Printing

To print from the MaxiSys tablet, you need to install printer software on a Windows-based computer connected to a printer.

- > To install the MaxiSys Printer driver program
- 1. Download the **Maxi PC Suite** from <u>www.autel.com</u> > Support & Updates > *Firmware* & Downloads > Update Client, and install to your windows-based computer.
- 2. Follow the pop-up instructions to install the Maxi PC Suit to your PC.
- 3. After the Maxi PC Suite installation, the printer driver program, **PC Link**, will be automatically installed on your PC.
- 4. Click on **Finish** to complete the installation procedure.

3.3.1 Printing

This section describes how to print files from the tablet through a Windows-based PC.

> To print through a Windows-based PC

- 1. Before printing, ensure the tablet is connected to the PC, either via Wi-Fi or LAN. See <u>Printing Setting</u> on page 114 for more information.
- 2. Launch the PC Link application on the PC to open the printer interface.
- 3. Click **Test Print** to make sure the printer is working successfully.
- Tap the **Print** button on the toolbar displayed in various applications of the MaxiSys system. A temporary file will be created and sent to the computer for printing.
- 5. Enable the Auto Print function to automatically print the files received from the tablet.

To print the document later, click on **Open PDF file** and select the document, and double click the **Print** on the MaxiSys Printer interface to start printing.

Ensure the computer with the PC Link software installed is connected to a printer.

4 Diagnostics

The Diagnostics application can access the electronic control module of multiple vehicle control systems, such as engine, transmission, ABS, and airbag system (SRS).

4.1 Vehicle Communication and Selection

4.1.1 Establish Vehicle Communication

The Diagnostics operations require connecting the MaxiSys MS909 tablet to the test vehicle through the VCI device using the Main Cable and test adapters (for non-OBD II vehicles). To establish proper vehicle communication with the tablet, you need to perform the following steps:

- 1. Connect the VCI device to the vehicle DLC for both communication and power supply.
- 2. Connect the VCI device to the tablet via BT pairing, Wi-Fi or USB connection.
- When the above steps are completed, check the VCI navigation button at the bottom bar on the screen. If a green BT, Wi-Fi or USB icon displays at the lower right corner, the MaxiSys MS909 Diagnostic Platform is ready to start vehicle diagnosis.

4.1.1.1 Vehicle Connection

The method used to connect the VCI device to a vehicle DLC depends on the vehicle configuration as follows:

- A vehicle equipped with an On-board Diagnostics Two (OBD II) management system supplies both communication and 12-volt power through a standardized J-1962 DLC.
- A vehicle not equipped with an OBD II management system supplies communication through a DLC connection, and in some cases supplies 12-volt power through the cigarette lighter receptacle or a connection to the vehicle battery.

OBD II Vehicle Connection

This type of connection only requires the main cable without any additional adapter.

> To connect to an OBD II vehicle

- 1. Connect the main cable's female adapter to the Vehicle Data Connector on the VCI device, and tighten the captive screws.
- 2. Connect the 16-pin male adapter to the vehicle DLC under the vehicle dash.

⊘NOTE

The vehicle DLC is not always located under the dash; refer to the user manual of the test vehicle for additional connection information.

Non-OBD II Vehicle Connection

This type of connection requires both the main cable and a required OBD I adapter for the specific vehicle being serviced.

There are three possible conditions for Non-OBD II vehicle connection:

- DLC connection supplies both communication and power.
- DLC connection supplies communication and power is to be supplied via the cigarette lighter connection.
- DLC connection supplies communication and power is to be supplied via connection to the vehicle battery.

> To connect to a Non-OBD II Vehicle

- 1. Connect the main cable's female adapter to the Vehicle Data Connector on the VCI device, and tighten the captive screws.
- 2. Locate the required OBD I adapter and connect its 9-pin jack to the main cable's male adapter.
- 3. Connect the attached OBD I adapter to the vehicle DLC.

Some vehicles may have more than one adapter or may have test leads instead of an adapter. Make the proper connection to the vehicle DLC as required.

> To connect the cigarette lighter

- 1. Plug the DC power connector of the cigarette lighter into the DC power supply input port on the device.
- 2. Connect the male connector of the cigarette lighter into the vehicle cigarette lighter receptacle.

> To connect the clipper cable

- 1. Connect the tubular plug of the clipper cable to the male connector of the cigarette lighter.
- 2. Plug the DC power connector of the cigarette lighter into the DC power supply input port of the VCI device.

3. Connect the clipper cable to the vehicle battery.



Figure 0-1 Connection between Cigarette Lighter and Clipper Cable

⊘NOTE

After the VCI device is successfully connected to the vehicle, the Power LED on the device lights, and a beep sound will be heard.

4.1.1.2 VCI Connection

After the VCI device is properly connected to the vehicle, the Power LED on the VCI device lights solid green, and is ready to establish communication with the tablet.

Coming with the MaxiSys MS909 tool kit, the VCI device supports three communication methods with the tablet: BT, Wi-Fi and USB.

Pairing Up via BT

The working range for BT communication is about 328 feet (100 m), giving technicians greater mobility to perform vehicle diagnosis from anywhere in the repair shop.

To expedite multi-vehicle diagnostics, more than one VCI can be used in busy repair shops enabling technicians to quickly pair via BT their MaxiSys tablet to each VCI separately and therefore eliminating the need to unplug the VCI from one vehicle and then connect it to another each time a new vehicle comes in for repairs.

- > To pair up the tablet with the VCI device via BT
 - 1. Power up the tablet.
 - 2. Select the VCI Manager application from the MaxiSys Main Screen.
 - The device automatically scans for available VCI devices around for BT pairing. The found devices are listed in the Setting section on the right side of the screen.

If no VCI device is found, this may indicate that the signal strength is too weak to be detected. Reposition the VCI device, and remove all possible objects that may cause signal interference. Tap the **Scan** button at the top right corner to rescan for VCI.

4. Typically, the VCI device name displays as Maxi suffixed with a serial number.

Select the VCI device for pairing. (If using more than one VCI is used in the shop, ensure the correct VCI is selected to pair.)

- 5. When pairing is successful, the connection status displays as Connected.
- 6. The VCI icon in the bottom navigation bar displays a green circle BT icon when the tablet and the VCI are connected.

Refer to 12.2 BT Pairing on page 120 for additional information.

Wi-Fi Connection

The VCI device supports both 2.4GHz and 5GHz Wi-Fi connection. Please choose 2.4GHz or 5GHz Wi-Fi connection according to specific situations. In open areas, the working range of 2.4G Wi-Fi communication is up to 328 feet (100 m) while 5G Wi-Fi is up to 164 feet (50 m).

- > To pair the tablet with the VCI device via Wi-Fi
 - 1. Power up the tablet.
 - 2. Select the VCI Manager application from the MaxiSys Main Screen.
 - When the VCI Manager application is opened, the tablet automatically scans for available VCI devices around for Wi-Fi connection. Found VCI devices are listed in the Setting section on the right side of the screen.
 - 4. Typically, the VCI device name displays as Maxi suffixed with a serial number. Select the required device for connection.
 - 5. When pairing is successful, the connection status is shown as Connected.
 - 6. The VCI icon in the bottom navigation bar displays a green circle Wi-Fi icon when the tablet and the VCI are connected.

Refer to <u>Wi-Fi Connection</u> on page 120 for additional information.

USB Cable Connection

The USB cable connection is a simple and quick way to establish communication between the tablet and the VCI device. After properly connecting the USB cable from the tablet to the VCI device, the VCI navigation button in the bottom bar of the screen displays a green check mark and the USB LED on the VCI device lights solid green, indicating the connection between the devices is successful.

The MaxiSys diagnostic platform is now ready to perform vehicle diagnosis.

NOTE

The USB connection provides the most stable and fastest communication and is therefore the recommended communication mode between the tablet and VCI when operating ECU programming or coding. The USB communication method will take priority over other connected communication modes.

4.1.1.3 No Communication Message

- A. If the tablet is unable to connect to the VCI, an "Error" message displays. The "Error" message indicates the tablet is not communicating with the VCI device. Troubleshoot the error by performing the following steps:
 - Ensure the VCI device is powered on.
 - When using the wireless connection, ensure the network is configured correctly and the proper device has been connected.
 - If the tablet loses communication abruptly during diagnostics, ensure no objects cause signal interruption.
 - Ensure the VCI device is properly positioned with the VCI front side up.
 - Move the tablet closer to the VCI device. If using the wired connection, ensure the cable is securely attached to the VCI.
 - Ensure the VCI communication mode is lit for the selected communication type, BT, Wi-Fi or USB.
- B. If the VCI device is unable to establish a communication link, a message will display troubleshooting instructions. Possible causes for the communication error include:
 - The VCI device is unable to establish a communication link with the vehicle.
 - A vehicle system has been selected for diagnosis that is not supported by the vehicle.
 - There is a loose connection.
 - There is a blown vehicle fuse.
 - The vehicle or the data case has a wiring fault.
 - There is a circuit fault in the data cable or adapter.
 - The vehicle identification code is incorrectly input.

4.1.2 Getting Started

Prior to first use of the Diagnostics application, ensure the VCI device is properly connected to and is communicating with the tablet. See <u>VCI Manager</u> on page 119.

4.1.2.1 Vehicle Menu Layout

When the VCI device is properly connected to the vehicle, and paired to the tablet, the platform is ready to start vehicle diagnosis. Tap on the Diagnostics application button on the MaxiSys Main Screen, the Vehicle Menu displays on the screen.

	All Favorites History	Europe Asia	٩
BMW	MERCEDES BENZ	NISSAN	MERCEDES BENZ LD
BMW	Mercedes-Benz	NISSAN	Mercedes-Benz LD
MAYBACH	SMART	MINI	ROLLSROVCE
Maybach	Smart	MINI	Rolls-Royce
	NISSAN	(man)	
	GTR		
INFINITI	NISSANGTR	Fuso	
		VCL 😂 😪	হি 125 ট

Figure 0-2 Sample Vehicle Menu Screen

- 1. Top Toolbar Buttons
- 2. Manufacturer Buttons

Top toolbar Buttons

The operations of the Toolbar buttons at the top of the screen are listed and described in the table below:

Name	Button	Description			
Home		Returns to the MaxiSys Main Screen.			
VID Scan	C	Tap this button to open a dropdown list; tap Auto Detect for auto VIN detection; tap Manual Input to enter VIN code or license number manually. Tap Scan VID to scan the license number / VIN code by camera.			
All	All	Displays all the vehicle makes in the vehicle menu.			
Favorites	Favorites	Displays use-selected favorite vehicle makes.			

Name	Button	Description			
History	History	Displays the stored test vehicle history records. This option provides direct access to the previously tested vehicle records during previous tests. See <i>9.1 Vehicle</i> History on page 107.			
America	America	Displays the American vehicle menu.			
Europe	Europe	Displays the European vehicle menu.			
Asia	Asia	Displays the Asian vehicle menu.			
China	China	Displays the Chinese vehicle menu.			
Search	QSearch	Tap the search field to display the virtual keyboard and input the vehicle manufacturer to test.			
Cancel	Cancel	Tap this button to exit the search screen or to cancel an operation.			

Manufacturer Buttons

The Manufacturer buttons display the various vehicle brand names. Select the manufacturer button after the VCI device is properly connected to the test vehicle to start a diagnostic session.

4.1.3 Vehicle Identification

The MaxiSys diagnostic system supports five methods of vehicle identification.

- 1. Auto VIN Scan
- 2. Manual Input
- 3. Scan License / VIN
- 4. Manual Vehicle Selection
- 5. OBD II Direct Entry

4.1.3.1 Auto VIN Scan

The MaxiSys diagnostic system features the latest VIN-based Auto VIN Scan function to identify CAN vehicles with just one tap, enabling the technician to quickly identify the exact vehicle and scan its available systems for fault codes.

> To perform Auto VIN Scan

1. Tap the Diagnostics application button from the MaxiSys Main Screen. The

Vehicle Menu displays.

- 2. Tap the VID Scan button in the top toolbar.
- Select Auto Detect. The tablet starts VIN scanning on the vehicle ECU. Once the test vehicle is successfully identified, the system will guide you to the Vehicle Diagnostics screen.



Figure 0-3 Sample Auto Detect Screen

Depending on the vehicle, the Auto VIN function is still available after a vehicle brand is selected.



Figure 0-4 Sample Vehicle Selection Screen

Select **Automatic Selection** and the system will acquire VIN information automatically or allow users to input the VIN manually.

4.1.3.2 Manual Input

For vehicles that do not support the Auto VIN Scan function, the MaxiSys diagnostic system allows you to enter the vehicle VIN manually, or simply take a photo of the VIN sticker for quick vehicle identification.

> To perform Manual Input

- 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button from the MaxiSys Main Screen. The Vehicle Menu displays.
- 2. Tap the **VID Scan** button on the top toolbar.
- 3. Select Manual Input.
- 4. Tap the input box and enter the correct VIN code or license number.



Figure 0-5 Sample Manual VIN Input

- 5. Tap **OK**. The vehicle will be identified and matched to the vehicle database. The Vehicle Diagnostics screen displays.
- 6. Tap Cancel to exit Manual Input.

4.1.3.3 Scan License / VIN

Tap **Scan License / VIN** in the dropdown list (Figure 4-3), the camera will be opened. Position the tablet to align the license number or VIN code with the scanning window and the license number or VIN code will be scanned and identified automatically. Tap OK to proceed.

	ş 20
Recognition result	
	• 🛱 📬 🔹 🕫 # 101.120

Figure 0-6 Sample Scan License / VIN Code 1

The vehicle information will be displayed on the tablet. If previous diagnostic records are present for the vehicle, these records and vehicle information will display. The VIN and the vehicle make, model and year must be entered manually if no record for a vehicle with the scanned license number exists in the tablet.

A	π π	All.	Favori	tes Hi	story	Európe					я.
Mercede	s-Benz	*	enter VIN	- 0	Enter VI	N					
					OK						
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	6	9	Q	Q	0
Q W	E	R	т	Y	U	1	0	P		Enter	
Ā	S	D	F	G	н	J	к	L	(*		
T Z	×	С	v	В	N	M					\sim
• ^		9	Ø		IM	VC	a	5		60	₹ 56% 2 5:44

Figure 0-7 Sample Scan License / VIN Code 2

4.1.3.4 Manual Vehicle Selection

When the vehicle VIN is not automatically retrievable through the vehicle ECU, or the specific VIN is unknown, you can select the vehicle manually.

Step-by-step Vehicle Selection

This mode of vehicle selection is menu driven. Follow the screen prompts and make a series of choices. Each selection you make advances you to the next screen. A **Back** button in the lower right corner of the screen redirects you to the previous screen. Procedures may vary by the vehicle being tested.

4.1.3.5 Alternative Vehicle Identification

Occasionally, the tablet may not be able to identify a vehicle. For these vehicles, the user needs to perform a generic OBD-II or EOBD diagnostics. See <u>Generic OBD II</u> <u>Operations</u> on page 60 for more information.

4.2 Diagnostics Screen Layout

This section describes how to navigate the Diagnostics interface and select test options.

4.2.1 Diagnostics Screen Layout

The Diagnostics screens typically includes six sections.



Figure 0-8 Sample Diagnostics Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar

- 4. Navigation Bar
- 5. Main Section
- 6. Functional Buttons

Diagnostics Toolbar

The Diagnostics Toolbar contains buttons that allow you to print or save the displayed data and perform other operations. The table below provides a brief description for the operations of the Diagnostics toolbar buttons:

Name	Button	Description			
Home	M	Returns to the MaxiSys Main Screen.			
Vehicle Swap	(P. 2)	Exits the diagnostic session and returns to the vehicle menu screen to select another vehicle for testing.			
Settings	ġ	Opens the setting screen. See <u>Settings</u> on page 113.			
Print		Saves and prints a copy of the displayed data.			
Help	0	Provides instructions or tips for operations of various diagnostic functions.			
Save		 Opens a submenu for the three options to save data: Tap Save This Page to take a screenshot image Tap Save All Data to save a PDF file (use this save option when data displays on multiple screens) Tap Start Saving to record a video clip (available for recording Live Data or graph data only) These files are saved in Data Manager. See Data Manager on page 106 			
Data Logging	1	Use this function when encountering an error when testing or diagnosing a vehicle. This function will record communication data and ECU information of the test vehicle and send it to Autel technicians to			

Table 0-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons

Name	Button	Description
		review and provide solutions.
		To follow up the processing progress, see <u>Data</u> <u>Logging</u> on page 126.
Send	£	Tap to submit the Data Logging report to the technical support center via the Internet.

> To print data in Diagnostics

- 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button on the MaxiSys Main Screen. The **Print** button in the diagnostic toolbar is available throughout the Diagnostics operation.
- 2. Tap **Print** and a drop-down list appears.
 - a) **Print This Page** prints a screenshot of the current screen.
 - b) Print All Data prints a PDF copy of all displayed data.
- 3. A temporary file will be created and sent to the computer for printing.
- 4. A confirmation message displays when the file is sent.

⊘NOTE

Make sure the tablet and the printer are connected either via Wi-Fi or LAN before printing. For more instructions on printing, see *10.1.3* **Printing** Settings on page 114 for details.

> To submit Data Logging reports in Diagnostics

- 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button from the MaxiSys Main Screen. The pen-shaped **Data Logging** button on the diagnostic toolbar is available throughout the whole Diagnostics operations.
- Tap the Data Logging button (a chat bubble icon is depicted on button) to open a selection box. Select from a list of errors to generally describe the problem encountered. A blue check mark will display adjacent to the error selected. Tap OK to continue.
- 3. A submission form will display to let you fill in the report information.
- 4. Tap the **Send** button in the upper right corner of the screen to submit the report form via the Internet, a confirmation message displays when sent successfully.

Status Information Bar

The Status Information Bar at the top of the Main Section displays the following items:

- 1. VCI Icon indicates the communication status between the tablet and the VCI device.
- 2. Battery Icon indicates the battery status of the vehicle.
Main Section

The Main Section varies depending on the stage of operations which shows vehicle identification selections, the main menu, test data, messages, instructions and other diagnostic information.

The Main Section can display as two format types, a topology map and as a listing of

vehicle modules.

A. Topology Tab Page

The **Topology Tab** page displays a system distribution diagram of the vehicle control modules.



Figure 0-9 Sample Topology Tab Page

Tap a module icon to perform further diagnosis and tests via the Function Menu screen (Figure 4-11).

B. List Tab Page

Column 1 - displays the system numbers

Column 2 - displays the scanned systems

Column 3 - displays the screen results

- -I-: Indicates that the scanned system may not support the code reading function, or there is a communication error between the tablet and the control system.
- ↔ -?-: Indicates that the vehicle control system has been detected, but the tablet

cannot access it.

- Fault | #: Indicates there is/are detected fault code(s) present; "#" indicates the quantity of detected faults.
- Pass | No Fault: Indicates the system has been scanned and no faults are detected.
- ♦ Not Scanned: Indicates the system has not been scanned.
- ♦ No Response: Indicates the system has not received a response.



Figure 0-10 Sample List Tab Page

Functional Buttons

The type of Functional Buttons displayed on the bottom of the screen vary by operation. Function include navigation, reporting and code clearing. The functions of these buttons will be described in the following sections when relevant.

The table below provides a brief description of the Functional Buttons' operations in Auto Scan:

Name	Description
Report	Displays the diagnostic data in the report form.
Quick Erase	Erases DTC records and other data from the ECM.
Fault Scan	Scans vehicle system modules.
Pause	Pauses the scanning process.

Table 0-3 Functional Buttons in Diagnostics Screen

Name	Description
Enter System	Enters the ECU system.
ESC	Returns to the previous screen or exit Auto Scan.

Select one of the system modules from the Topology or List, and tap **Enter System** to enter the specific system functions

⊘NOTE

The Diagnostic Buttons Toolbar (located at the top of the screen) will be active throughout the diagnostic session for such tasks as printing and saving the displayed data, obtaining help information, or performing data logging.



Figure 0-11 Sample Function Menu Screen

Available functions may vary by vehicle. The function menu may include:

- **ECU Information** displays detailed ECU information. Select to display information screen.
- Read Codes displays detailed DTC information retrieved from the vehicle control module.
- Erase Codes erases DTC records and other data from the ECM.
- Live Data retrieves and displays live data and parameters from the vehicle ECU.
- Active Test provides specific subsystem and component tests. This selection

may display as Actuators, Actuator Test, or Function Tests. Available tests vary by vehicle.

 Control Unit – Select to directly locate a control system for testing. Follow the menu driven procedure, and make proper selections to be guided to appropriate module and function menu.

BMW 100.22	e4	¢ @	0	B	1	
BMW > Automatic selection > Control un	a.				ν	NDE IEE 12 46V
		Control unit				
Drive		Chassis			Body	
VIN:WBA5A510XGD313241 Info: BNW/55/528I_N20/FTN/ THA_RL		÷				ESC
	0	🔄 🏫 V	c. 🔒	5		₩ 2 16% £ 3:0

Figure 0-12 Sample Control Unit Screen

 Special Functions – provides component adaptation or variant coding functions for custom configurations, and to allow to entry of adaptive values for certain components after repairs.

Screen Messages

Messages display when additional input is needed before proceeding. There are three main types of on-screen messages: Confirmation, Warning, and Error.

• Confirmation Messages

This type of messages usually displays as an Information screen, when you are about to perform an action that cannot be reversed or when an action has been initiated and your confirmation is needed to continue.

When a user-response is not required, the message displays briefly.

• Warning Messages

This type of messages displays when completing the selected action may result in an irreversible change or loss of data. An example of this message is the Erase Codes message.

• Error Messages

Error messages display when a systemic or procedural error has occurred. Possible errors include cable disconnection and communication interruption.

4.2.2 Making Selections

The Diagnostics application is a menu-driven program that presents a series of options one at a time. As you select from a menu, the next menu in the series displays. Each selection narrows the focus and leads to the desired test. Use your fingertip or the stylus pen to make menu selections.

4.3 Auto Scan

The Auto Scan function performs a comprehensive scanning of all systems in the vehicle ECU to locate faults and retrieve DTCs. Tap Fault Scan to start scan. Systems with no faults detected will display in green; systems containing faults will display in orange.

> To perform Auto Scan function

1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button on the MaxiSys Main Screen. Choose the corresponding vehicle information and enter the vehicle diagnostic page.



Figure 0-13 Sample Vehicle Selection Screen

2. Select Auto scan on the Main menu to enter the diagnostic interface.

MW 1.00.22	۵	T.	•	•		B	1	
MW > Automatic select	ion > Main menu							VO: E1 12.50V
			N	Aain menu				
FO	1	1			50		-	
Auto scar	1	Cont	rol unit		Service		Hot fur	nctions
	1	6						
Programmi	ng	Vehicl	e profile					
N:WBA5A510XGD343; fo: BNW/5/528 N20/	241 F1D/							ESC

Figure 0-14 Main Menu Screen

3. The **Topology** tab page displays in the main section. Tap the **Fault Scan** button at the bottom of the screen to scan the vehicle system modules.



Figure 0-15 Sample Auto Scan Screen 1

4.3.1 Test Plan

The Test Plan function intelligently prioritizes DTCs and leads the user to the proper repair. This function is initially available for a subset of vehicles with extensive



coverage to follow in subsequent software updates.

Figure 0-16 Sample Auto Scan Screen 2

> To perform the Test Plan function

- 1. Select **Test Plan** from the bottom functional buttons.
- 2. A test plan displays with recommended test or procedure to perform. Items with higher priority should be tested first.



Figure 0-17 Sample Test Plan Screen 1

- 4. Tap the button to test relative functions. Tap the button to display the system information in detail and tap again to fold it.
- 5. Press Run to continue.



Figure 4-18 Sample Test Plan Screen 2

6. Follow the downloaded instructions to complete action.

4.4 Read and Erase Codes

4.4.1 Read Codes

This function retrieves and displays the DTCs from the vehicle control system. The Read Codes screen varies for each vehicle being tested. For some vehicles, freeze frame data can also be retrieved for viewing. A sample Read Codes screen displays as below:

BMW N1 80 22	ŵ	Ŧ	٥	•	6	B	1		
EMW + Automatic	s sinespon n Austra scott n B	name OME digt	lai matut erea	trance = Trauble	codes			VC	63 17.41%
				Fault Codes					
000	Same	0	- 0.00						alton
171533	Permanent	C P	harging pre Moreure too	ssure ambler low	t presaulis, con	portson: char	ging	۲	导
135908	Permanent	٧	alvetronic s	ervomotor po	ition sensors:	upply voltage	missing	0	P
103110	Permanent	E	ngine oil pre	ssure/temper	ature sensor, e	ectrical: fault		0	P
1F1A90	Permanent	D	igital Motor oltage out o	Electronics (C f valid range	ME), monitorin	g, 5V sensor s	upply:	٥	₽
1F1A91	Permanent	D	igital Motor oltage out o	Electronics (L I valid range	ME), monitorin	g, 5V sensor s	upply 2;	0	导
VINWBASASTON	003437.41	_	in a		1				
THA IN	n Netre 100		DTC guide	Freeze	Search	Read codes	Erase		ESC
6 4		Ō		1AT 1		58			2 17× E34

Figure 0-19 Sample Read Codes Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar see *Table 0-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons* on page 34 for details.
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar
- 4. Navigation Bar
- 5. Main Section
 - Column 1 displays the retrieved codes from the vehicle.
 - Column 2 indicates the status of the retrieved codes.
 - Column 3 detailed descriptions for the retrieved codes.
- 6. Functional Buttons
 - DTC guide tap to check related repair cases and help information.
 - Freeze Frame icon displays when freeze frame data is available for viewing; Tap icon to display data screen. The Freeze Frame interface is similar to the Read Codes interface and share similar operations.
 - **Search** tap to search the selected DTC for additional information on the Internet.
 - **Erase codes** tap to erase codes from the vehicle. It is recommended that DTCs are read and needed repairs are performed before erasing codes.

- **Read codes** retrieves and displays the DTCs from the vehicle control system. The Read Codes screen varies for each vehicle being tested.
- **ESC** tap it to return to the previous screen or exit the function.

4.4.2 Erase Codes

After reading the retrieved codes from the vehicle and certain repairs have been made, you can erase the codes from the vehicle using this function. Before performing this function, make sure the vehicle ignition key is in the ON (RUN) position with the engine off.

> To erase codes

- 1. Tap Erase Codes in the Function Menu.
- 2. A warning message displays to inform you of data loss when this function is applied.
 - a) Tap **Yes** to continue. A confirming screen displays when the operation is successfully done.
 - b) Tap No to exit.
- 3. Tap **ESC** on the confirming screen to exit Erase Codes.
- 4. Check the Read Codes function again to ensure the operation is successful.

4.5 Live Data

When this function is selected, the screen displays the data list for the selected module. The data available for any control module varies by vehicle. The parameters display in the order that they are transmitted by the ECM, so expect variation among vehicles.

Gesture scrolling allows you to quickly move through the data list. Touch the screen and drag your finger up or down to reposition the parameters being displayed if the data occupies more than one screen. The figure below displays a typical Live Data screen:

BMW V1.00,22	۵	I	\$	-	0	B	1	٩
BMW + Automatic sa	ection > Auto scan > B	ingine DME digit:	al motor electro	nics > Live data			VCb F	812.43V
Name 🕤						Value	Unit	
101 Engine s	peed				0	N/A	r/min	
102 Coolant	temperature				0	N/A	*F	
103 Engine o	il temperature				0	N/A	۴F	
104 Battery v	oltage				0	N/A	v	
105 Emission	ns warning lamp: s	tatus			0	N/A		
106 Emission	ns warning lamp: c	listance travel	lled since act	ivation	0	N/A	miles	
107 Status o	f engine warning la	mp			0	N/A		
110 Operatin	g time since engin	e start.			0	N/A	s	
111 Operation	g hour counter				0	N/A	min	
			29	÷ 1	a	8		4
		silected Gra	CON LIVENSIE	ound Se	tting Clear da	ta Freeze	Record	Back
• *	9	Ó	*	M V	C) 😝	E.		₹ 19% £3.26

Figure 0-20 Sample Live Data Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons see *Table 0-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons* on page 34 for detailed descriptions of the operations for each button.
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar
- 4. Navigation Bar
- 5. Main Section
 - Name Column this column displays the parameter names.
 - a) Check Box tap the check box to the left of a parameter name to select the item. Tap the check box again to deselect it.
 - b) Drop-down Button tap the drop-down button on the right side of the parameter name to open a submenu, which provides optional modes in which to display the data.
 - Value Column displays the values of the parameter items.
 - Unit Column displays the unit for the parameter values.
 - To change the Unit mode, tap the Setting button in the top toolbar and select a required mode. See 10.1.1 Unit on page 113.

Display Mode

There are four types of display modes available for data viewing, allowing you to view various types of parameters in the mode best suited to represent the data.

Tap the drop-down button to the right of the parameter name to open a submenu. A total of 6 buttons will be displayed: The 4 buttons to the left represent different data display modes, plus one Help button, active when additional information is available, and one Unit Change button, for switching the unit of displayed data, to the right.



Figure 0-21 Sample Display Mode Screen

Each parameter item displays the selected mode independently.

- ♦ Analog Gauge Mode displays the parameters in gauge charts.
- ♦ Text Mode the default mode that displays the parameters as a text list.
- ♦ Waveform Graph Mode displays the parameters in waveform graphs.

In this mode, three control buttons will display on the right side of the screen, allowing you to manipulate the displayed status.

- Edit Button tap to open an edit window, in which you can set the waveform color and the line thickness displayed for the selected parameter item.
- Text Button resumes Text Display Mode.
- Zoom-in Button tap once to display the selected data graph in full screen.

There are also two scale buttons, displayed above the waveform graph to the right side, which can be used to change the scale values of the X axis and Y axis of the graph. There are four scales available: x1, x2, x4 and x8.

Above the graph in the middle, there is a **SetY** button. Tap it to open the **Settings** window in which the minimum and maximum value of the Y axis can be set.

VOLVO V0.99.29	Ŵ	T	\$	ē	(D	B	1		۹
VOLVO > Automatic sele	ection > Auto scan >	Engine Control I	Module (ECM)	> Live data					VON6 CE	12.74V
Name 🕤							Value		Unit	
CID (Camshaft	Position Sensor) inlet (bank1)(°)		SetY	0 1	1	*1 Q.X	Q. Y _1	=
\$1 - I										Δ
16 ÷										
4)(-)										K N K N
ũ nư										
E TETA	arga comit-	neux-	-101200-	0.030	206.067	(0)-(1)-	100.62	116.0.1		
CID (Camshaft	Position Sensor)	outlet (bank	: 1)			0	8		•	
Fuel rail pressu	ire sensor voltage	e				0	0.679		v	
Boost pressure	e sensor voltage					0	1.626		v	
Boost pressure	sensor					0	14.71		psi	
				*	0	î	6		16 - A	6
	5	Show Gra	ph merge	To top	Setting	Clear dat	a Free	eze Rec	ord E	Back
•		0		M	VCI		6 0		()	68% 6:1

Figure 4-22 Sample Waveform Graph Mode Screen

- Digital Gauge Mode displays the parameters in the form of a digital gauge graph.
- > To edit the waveform color and line thickness in a data graph
 - 1. Select 1 to 3 parameter items to display in Waveform Graph mode.
 - 2. Tap the **Zoom-in Button** on the right side to display the data graph in full screen.
 - 3. Tap the Edit Button, and an edit window displays.
 - 4. Select a parameter item from the left column.
 - 5. Select a color from the second column.
 - 6. Select a line thickness from the right column.
 - 7. Repeat step 4 to 6 to edit the waveform for each parameter.

8. Tap **Done** to save the setting and exit, or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.



Figure 4-23 Sample Waveform Edit Screen

6. Functional Buttons

The operations of all available functional buttons on the Live Data screen are described below:

- ♦ Back returns to the previous screen or exits the function.
- Record starts recording the retrieved live data; the recorded data is then stored as a video clip in the Data Manager application for future reviews. This function can be triggered automatically at preset threshold values or manually. The triggering mode and record duration can be configured in the Setting mode of Live Data.
- ♦ Freeze displays the retrieved data in freeze mode.
 - Previous frame moves to the previous frame of frozen data.
 - Next frame moves to the next frame of frozen data.
- Resume this button displays when the Record or Freeze function is applied. Tap this button to stop data recording, or exit freeze data mode, and resumes normal data display mode.
- Flag this button displays when the Record function is applied. Tap this button to set flags to note points of interest when recording data. During playback in Data

Manager, the preset flag will enable a popup window to allow for notes to be added.

- ♦ Clear data tap this button to clear all previously retrieved parameter values.
- ♦ To top moves the selected data item(s) to the top of the list.
- ♦ Graph merge tap this button to merge selected data graphs (for Waveform Graph Mode only). This function is very useful when comparing different parameters.

⊘ΝΟΤΕ

This mode supports Graph Merge for 2 to 3 parameter items only. Select 2 or 3 parameters when creating a graph merge.

- > To cancel Graph Merge mode, tap the drop-down button to the right of the parameter name, and select a data display mode.
 - Show selected/Show all tap this button to switch between the two options; one displays the selected parameter items, and the other displays all the available items.
 - ✤ Setting tap this button to open a setting screen to set the trigger mode, recording duration, and to set threshold values for data recording.

Cancel	Selected Record	Done
Q Search	Intake Air Temperature(Unit"F)	
Imake Air Temperature	MIN 60	
Fuel pressure low side voltage	MAX 80	
CID (Carnshaft Position Sensor) inlet (bank1)	Buzzer alarm	TDFF
CID (Carnshaft Position Sensor) outlet (bank 1)		
Fuel rail pressure sensor voltage		
Boost pressure sensor voltage		
Boost pressure sensor		
Oil temperature voltage		
↑ ↑ ■ Ø 1	o 📰 🏦 VCI 🚔 👫	(¶) ╤ 54% = 8:1

Figure 0-64 Sample Setting Mode in Live Data

There are four navigation buttons at the top of the **Setting** mode screen.

• Selected Button – displays the configuration screen to set the threshold values, an

upper limit and a lower limit, for triggering the buzzer alarm. This function is only applied to the Waveform Graph display mode.

- a) MIN tap this button to display a virtual keyboard to enter the required lower limit value.
- b) MAX tap this button to display a virtual keyboard to enter the required upper limit value.
- c) Buzzer alarm switches the alarm on and off. The alarm function makes a beep sound as an alert when the data reading reaches the preset minimum or maximum point.

> To set threshold limits for the parameter values

- 1. Tap the **Setting** button at the bottom of the Live Data screen.
- 2. Tap the **Selected** navigation button.
- 3. Select a parameter item from the left column, or enter the item name in the Search box.
- 4. Tap the **MIN** button on the right side, and enter the required minimum value.
- 5. Tap the **MAX** button on the right side, and enter the required maximum value.
- Tap the ON/OFF button on the right side of the Buzzer alarm button to turn it on or off.
- 7. Tap **Done** to save the setting and return to the Live Data screen; or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.

When the limits are successfully set, two horizontal lines display on the data graph (when Waveform Graph Mode is applied) to indicate the alarm point. The limit lines are shown in different colors for distinction from the parameter waveforms.

- **Record** displays the configuration screen for record setting, where you can set the trigger type, duration and trigger point for the data recording function.
- a) Trigger type sets the trigger mode for data recording. There are four options available:
- 1) Manual allows you to manually start and stop data recording.
- 2) DTC automatically triggers data recording when any DTC is detected.
- DTC check mode automatically triggers data recording when certain pre-selected DTC types are detected.
- 4) Parameter automatically triggers data recording when any parameter value reaches the preset threshold.

b) Duration – sets the recording duration (for Auto trigger mode only).

Trigger point - reserves a relative percentage of a record length before the data

lancel	Selected Record	Sen
Record setting		
Trigger type	Trigger type	Moriaai D
Duration	Manual 🖌	200.7
Trigger point	DTC DTC check mode	lese i
	Parameter	
		@ ?511

recording start point for reference (for Auto trigger mode only).

Figure 4-25 Sample Record Setting Screen

- > To perform setting for live data record
- 1. Tap the **Setting** button at the bottom of the Live Data screen.
- 2. Tap the **Record** navigation button.
- 3. Tap the > button to the right of **Trigger type** and select the required trigger mode.
- 4. Tap the > button to the right of **Duration** and select the time duration.
- 5. Tap the > button to the right of **Trigger point** and select a relative percentage of a record length to be reserved before the data recording start point.
- 6. Tap **Done** to save the setting and return to the Live Data screen; or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.
- **Done** confirms and saves the setting, and redirects you to the Live Data screen.
- **Cancel** cancels the setting operation, and redirects you to the Live Data screen.

4.6 Active Test

The Active Test function is used to access vehicle-specific subsystem and component tests. Available tests vary by vehicle.

During an active test, the tablet sends commands to the ECU to activate the actuators. This test determines the integrity of the system or part by reading ECU data, or by monitoring the operation of the actuators. Such tests may include switching a solenoid, relay, or switch, between two operating states.

Selecting Active Test displays a menu of test options. Available tests vary by vehicle. Select test from menu option. Follow the instructions displayed on screen to complete test. Procedures and instructions vary by vehicle



The functional buttons in the lower right corner of the Active Test screen manipulate the test signals. The operational instructions are displayed in the main section of the test screen. Follow the on-screen instructions and make appropriate selections to complete the tests. Each time an operation is successfully executed, a message such as "Command Finished", or "Activation Successful" displays.

Tap the ESC functional button to exit the test when finished.

4.7 ECU Information

This function retrieves and displays the specific information for the tested control unit, including unit type and version numbers.

V1.00.27	1	c 0	6	8	8	B	1	
BMW > Accomatic	selection + Auto scan > Engine-D	ME digital motor el	éctronice > EC	J information				VCI: EE 12.45V
			ECU inform	ation				
Intelligent batte	ery sensor (IBS) serial numl	ber						0
Intelligent batte	ery sensor (IBS) part numbe	er						e
Kilometer readi	ing when programming							0
Programming c	date (day, month, year)							00.00.00
VIN-WBA5A510XG	0943241							
Info: BMW/57528i, THA RL	N20/F10	-	-		-			ESC
• 1		0	M	VC		5		\$ 18% £3:2

Figure 0-28 Sample ECU Information Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons see *Table 0-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons* on page 34 for detailed description of each button.
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar
- 4. Main Section the left column displays the item names; the right column displays the specifications or descriptions.
- 5. Functional Button in this case, only a **Back** (or **ESC**) button is available; tap it to exit after viewing.

4.8 Special Functions

These functions perform various component adaptations, including the recalibration or configuration of certain components after repairs or replacements have been completed.

Follow the on-screen instructions to go to the Special function option.



Figure 0-29 Sample Special Function Screen 1



Figure 0-30 Sample Special Function Screen 2

V1.00.21	Q 0	BI	
BMW > Automatic selection > Special function > Condition	Based Service Resel KWP		NOME 21 1 2:821
c	ondition Based Service Reset KWP		
Engine oil	66.%	18	
Front brakes	86 %	7	
Rear brakes	44 %	7	
Brake fluid	71 %	10	
Vehicle check	85 %	4	
Diesel Particulate Filter	DPF		
Microfilter	83 %	9	
Exhaust emission inspection	8 / 2017	4	
Vehicle inspection	Deactivated	×	
VIN:SB49053 Info: BMW/5/525LL:N52/E60/ CHN_LL		Reset	ESC
		<i>c</i> .	* 41×

Select a function to display detailed function information and execution screen.

Figure 0-31 Sample Special Function Screen 3

- Column 1 displays the description of the function being performed or displays live data corresponding to the special function
- Column 2 displays the execution status such as Completed or Activated or may display live data values that correspond to the special function
- Column 3 displays the measurement units of the live data

Tap the Reset button perform the selected function or tap the ESC button to exit the function.

4.9 Programming

Since the introduction of OBD II and leading up to modern Hybrids and EVs, hardware and software technologies in cars have been advancing at an exponential. Updating software may be the only way to fix the following issues:

- Drivability
- Fuel Efficiency
- Power Loss
- Fault Codes

• Durability of Mechanical Parts

The Programming and Coding function is used to re-flash the vehicle control modules, which allows you to update the computer software of the vehicle to the latest version, as well as to reprogram adaptive data of certain components after making repairs or replacements.

⊘NOTE

The programming function applies only when the vehicle is connected with a J2534 programming device, which serves as a PassThru interface to establish communication with and transfer data to the vehicle ECU.

Available programming or coding operations vary by test vehicle, and only the available operations display in the menu.

There are two general types of programming operations:

- A. Coding also known as *Teach-in Program*, or *Component Adaptation*, is used to reprogram adaptive data for vehicle control modules after repairs or replacements of vehicle parts.
- B. Reprogramming Operations downloads the latest version of software from the online server database through Internet access (this procedure is done automatically when the tablet is connected to the Internet, so there is no need to check for software updates yourself), and reprograms the newest version into the vehicle ECU.

⊘NOTE

Ensure that the tablet is connected to the Internet before applying the ECU programming function, so that the tablet can access the manufacturer's server for update service.

Selecting the Programming or Coding function opens a menu of operation options that varies by make and model. Selecting a menu option either displays a programming interface or opens another menu of additional choices. Follow all screen instructions while performing the programming or coding operations. How and what information is presented on the screen vary by the type of operation being performed.

4.9.1 Coding

The main section of the Coding screen displays a list of vehicle components or coding options.

Menceges-Benz = 41	Itomatic selection = Programming = Coding.		WEME == 12.78	
	Display of coding d	ata		
-06	Insummation	venue:		
000	Y58/4 (activated charcoal canister shut-off valve)	Not fitted		
001	Active body control	Not fitted		
002	Emissions standard	EU4, EU5 (Not applicable to more	del series X204, 20 🔻	
003	All-Wheel Drive	Nol fitted		
004	Code	B13B5S0		
005	Model series	221	7	
006	Dashpot	Active		
007	RPM increase because of request from A/T	Active		
008	(ECO) Power steering pump	Not fitted		
009	Speed control	Not active	h.	
/IN:WIDE7040541A nfc: Benz/204.054 Tasoline	173456 G.(2041	Coding Conti	inue ESC	

Figure 0-32 Sample Coding Screen

The main section of the Coding screen displays a list of vehicle components and the coding information that mainly consists of two parts:

- 1. All available systems for coding are displayed on the left side, and the coding data or value on the right side.
- 2. The bottom of the main section displays the functional buttons that enable you to manipulate the operation.

Check the vehicle condition and the coding information carefully. Use the functional button to edit Codes for the corresponding components. Tap **Send** when you have finished editing all items. When the operation is completed, an execution status message such as Completed, Finished or Successful, may display.

Tap the **ESC** button to exit the function.

4.9.2 Reprogramming

Before the reprogramming begins:

- Ensure the tablet works in a stable Wi-Fi network.
- Connect the tablet to the VCI by USB.
- Fully charge the tablet battery and connect the tablet to a charger if necessary.
- Attach a battery maintainer to the vehicle battery to maintain a steady voltage throughout the reprogramming. Voltage requirements differ by vehicle. Consult the

vehicle manufacturer before programming a module.

• Keep the application running during module reprogramming, or the process may fail and result in permanent damage to the module.

Typical reprogramming operations require you to input and validate VIN number first. Tap the input box and enter the correct number. The programming interface then displays.



Figure 0-33 Sample Reprogramming Operation Screen

The main section of the reprogramming interface offers information of the hardware, the current software version and the newest software versions to be programmed into the control units.

A series of on-screen operational instructions will display to guide you through the programming procedure.

Carefully read the on-screen information and follow the instruction to execute the programming procedure.

4.9.3 Re-flash Errors

IMPORATANT

When reprogramming onboard, always make sure the vehicle battery is fully charged and in good working condition. During reprogramming, the operation may fail if voltage falls below the proper operation voltage. Sometimes a failed operation can be recovered, but the failed reprogramming can also ruin the control module. We recommend connecting an external battery maintainer to the vehicle to ensure steady voltage throughout the programming. The required voltage differs by vehicle. Consult vehicle manufacturer for correct voltage to be maintained.

Occasionally a flash update procedure may not complete properly. Common causes of flash errors include poor cable connections between the tablet, VCI, and vehicle, the vehicle ignition being switched off before the flash procedure is complete, or low vehicle battery voltage.

If the process quits, recheck all the cable connections to assure good communications and initialize the flash procedure. The programming procedure will automatically repeat if the previous operation fails.

4.10 Generic OBD II Operations

The OBD II/EOBD vehicle diagnosis option offers a quick way to check for DTCs, isolate the cause of a dashboard malfunction indicator lamp (MIL), check monitor status prior to emissions certification testing, verify repairs, and perform other emissions-related services. The OBDII direct access option is also used for testing OBD II/EOBD-compliant vehicles that are not included in the Diagnostics database. Diagnostics toolbar buttons at the top of the screen are available for specific vehicle diagnostics. See Table 4-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons on page 34 for details.

General Procedure

- > To access the OBD II/EOBD diagnostics functions
 - 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button in the MaxiSys Main Screen. The Vehicle Menu displays.
 - 2. Tap the **EOBD** button. There are two options to establish communication with the vehicle.
 - Auto Scan select it to establish communication using each protocol in order to determine which one the vehicle is using.
 - Protocol select it to open a submenu of various protocols. A communication protocol is a standardized way of data communication between an ECM and a diagnostic tool. Global OBD may use several different communication protocols.
 - 3. Select a specific protocol if the **Protocol** option is selected. Wait for the OBD II Diagnostic Menu to appear.



Figure 0-34 Sample OBD II Diagnostic Menu

- 4. Select a function option to continue.
 - DTC & FFD
 - I/M Readiness
 - Live Data
 - O2 Sensor Monitor
 - On-Board Monitor
 - Component Test
 - Vehicle Information
 - Vehicle Status

⊘NOTE

Supported functions may vary by vehicle.

Function Descriptions

This section describes the various functions of each diagnostic option:

Trouble Codes

When this function is selected, the screen displays a list of Stored Codes and Pending Codes. When the Freeze Frame data of certain DTCs are available for viewing, a snowflake button will display on the right side of the DTC item. The Erase Codes function can be applied by tapping the functional button at the bottom of the screen.

EOBD V0.99.39	A X	¢ 🖶 🖗 🖻 🗡	
EOBD > Protocols	(>150/15766-4 (CAN) > DTC&FFD	VCI	6 EB 1231V
		Trouble codes(LANDROVER)	
orre	Stenes	Description	DTC guida
P1000	\$753 Stored	On-board diagnostic (OBD) systems readiness test not complete	
P0100	\$7EB Stored	Mass or volume air flow sensor 'A' circuit.	导
P0199	\$7E8 Stored	Engine oil temperature sensor 'A' circuit intermittent/erratic.	
P0200	\$7E8 Stored	Injector circuit/open.	-
P02FA	\$7E8 Stored	Diesel intake air flow position sensor minimum/maximum stop performance.	
P0300	\$7E8 Stored	Random/multiple cylinder misfire detected.	导
P0394	\$7E8 Stored	Camshaff position sensor 'B' circuit intermittent bank 2.	-
P0400	\$7E8 Stored	EGR 'A' flow.	
	\$7F8	Exhaust pressure control valve 'R' position sensor/switch circuit	
VIA:SAL7E155A5 Info: E06D/ISO 1	5323530 5765-4(CAN)	BTC Preste Search Erase Read codes codes	ESC
6 1	G	त्र 🖬 🏠 VCL 😂 🕰 🔹) 후 78% 1113

Figure 0-9 Sample Trouble Codes Screen

• Stored Codes

Stored codes are emission-related DTCs from the ECM of the vehicle. OBD II/EOBD Codes have a priority according to their emission severity, with higher-priority codes overwriting lower-priority ones. The priority of the code determines if a MIL can enact the codes erase procedure. Manufacturers rank codes differently so expect display to vary by vehicle.

• Pending Codes

These are codes whose storing conditions have been met during the last drive cycle, but need to be met on two or more consecutive drive cycles before the DTC stored. The purpose of displaying pending codes is to assist the service technician after a vehicle repair when diagnostic information is cleared, by reporting test results after a single driving cycle.

a) If a test fails during the driving cycle, the DTC associated is reported. If the pending fault does not occur again within 40 to 80 warm-up cycles, the fault is automatically cleared from memory. b) Test results reported do not necessarily indicate a faulty component or system. If test results indicate another failure after additional driving, a DTC is stored to indicate a faulty component or system.

• Freeze Frame

In most cases the stored frame is the last DTC reported. Certain DTCs, those that have a greater impact on vehicle emission, have a higher priority. In these cases, DTC of the highest priority is the one for which the freeze frame records are retained. Freeze frame data includes a "snapshot" of critical parameter values at the time the DTC is stored.

• Erase Codes

This option is used to clear all emission-related diagnostic data including DTCs, freeze frame data and specific manufacturer-enhanced data from the vehicle ECM. This option resets the I/M Readiness Monitor Status for all vehicle monitors to Not Ready or Not Complete status.

A confirmation screen displays when the clear codes option is selected to prevent accidental loss of data. Select **Yes** on the confirmation screen to continue, or **No** to exit.

I/M Readiness

This function is used to check the readiness of the monitoring system. It is an excellent function to use prior to having a vehicle inspected for state emissions compliance. Selecting I/M Readiness opens a submenu with two choices:

- Since DTCs Cleared displays the status of monitors since the last time the DTCs are erased.
- This Driving Cycle displays the status of monitors since the beginning of the current drive cycle.

Live Data

This function enables the display of real-time PID data from the ECU. Displayed data includes analog and digital input and output, and system status information broadcast in the vehicle data stream.

Live data can be displayed in various modes, see *4.5 Live Data* on page 45 for detailed information.

O2 Sensor Monitor

This function allows retrieval and review of recent O2 sensor monitor test results stored on the vehicle on-board computer.

The O2 Sensor Monitor test function is not supported by vehicles that communicate using a controller area network (CAN). For O2 Sensor Monitor tests results of CAN-equipped vehicles, refer to *On-Board Monitor*.

On-Board Monitor

This function allows you to view the results of On-Board Monitor tests. The tests are useful after the service when a vehicle control module memory is already erased.

Component Test

This function enables dual-directional control of the ECM so that the diagnostic tool can transmit control commands to operate the vehicle systems. This function is useful in determining how well the ECM responds to a command.

Vehicle Information

This function enables the display of the vehicle identification number (VIN), calibration identification number, calibration verification number (CVN), and other information of the test vehicle.

Vehicle Status

This function checks the current condition of the vehicle, such as the communication protocols of OBD II modules, number of fault codes, and status of the Malfunction Indicator Light (MIL).

4.11 Diagnostic Report

Pre-Scan and Post-Scan

- > To perform the pre-scan and post-scan functions:
 - 1. Auto SCAN the Vehicle the Auto VID function can automatically identify the vehicle and its equipped systems. All available modules in all systems will be scanned automatically. Codes and code details will be listed.
 - 2. Print Pre-SCAN Report vehicle images can be taken with tablet and attached to SCAN report. The report file can be generated and submitted. The report can be customized with shop and vehicle information.
 - 3. Repair Vehicle creates efficient repair plan from the start.
 - 4. Auto SCAN Repaired Vehicle ensures no new faults were created during repair and no DTCs are present at completion.
 - 5. Print Post-SCAN Report proves all DTCs on Pre-SCAN report are fixed.

Diagnostic Report PDF

The diagnostic report can be reviewed, saved, and printed in multiple applications of the platform.

- a) Via the **History** function:
 - Enter the Diagnosis main page, and tap **History** in the Top Toolbar.

		3 Records CITY Count. D 2019 (RADI ON 1919). CITY Count D 2019 Count D	0 0 0
		crite Count. 0 2019 divide divide 11/14 crite Count: 0 2019 divide discriminaria	0
		000 Count 0 2019-08-02 86:01:07	0
		0112.Gount: 0 20119-06-02105-50.57	8
		16 Records	0
		0000Gnach (0 2019-07-31-03.39.57	0
		nim colini. In 2016 p. k. a propola	8
		000 Course (0 2019-07-20 J2 Str.40	0
		010 Count (0 2010 97 51 02 57 24	0
		01/0 Count. 0 2019/07/31 02:58:11	0
			16 Records 91% Staudi 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2014 97 - 10 0.038 57 0 0 2015 0.048 - 10 0.008 56 0 0 2017 0.048 57 0 0 2017 0.048 57 0 0 2017 0.048 57 0 0 2017 0.048 57 0 0 2017 0.048 57 0 0 2017 0.048 57 0 0 2017 0.048 57 0 0

Figure 0-36 Sample History Screen

 Select a history record, and tap the •••• button in the upper right corner to view, print, email or delete the PDF document.

Title	Mercedes-Benz LD Vaneo				View PDI
n an interne	at an				🖨 Print
Year.			VIN		🖾 Email
Make	Mercedes-Benz LD		License		Delete
Model	Vaneo		Odometer Mileage		
Sub model	Gasoline engine		Color		
Engine			Status	Not started	
(
Technician					
Technician Notes					
		_			

Figure 0-37 Sample Historical Test Screen

- b) Via the Auto Scan function:
 - Enter the **Auto Scan** page and tap **Fault Scan** in the Functional Button Bar at the bottom of the screen.

BMW V1.08.22	۵	Z	\$			B	1	
BMW - Automotic 995	ection = Auto scan						W	⊐k ⊞ 12.50V
Topology	Lîst							
1 Engine-DME	digital motor ele	ctronics					Not scanned	1100
2 Electronic tr	ansmission cont	rol transmissi	ion manager	ment			Not scanned	-
3 ABS-DSC							Not scanned	inde:
4 ACSM (Airba	ag Advanced Cra	sh Safety Mo	dule)				Not scanned	-
5 INSTR (Instr	rument Cluster)						Not scanned	
6 EMF (Parkin	ng Brake)						Not scanned	
7 Tire pressur	re control						Not scanned	1100
8 Caraccess	system						Not scanned	me
9 ZGM (Centra	al Gateway Modu	lle)					Not scanned	1105
VIN.WEA5A510XGD34 IIID: BMW/5/52BI_NZ THA_RL	43241 20/F10/		Test	Repott	Quick	Fault scan	Enter Sistem	ESC
• *				ŵν	C A	E		

Figure 0-38 Sample Auto Scan Screen 1

• When the system scan is completed, tap **Report** in the Functional Button Bar

at the bottom of the screen.

¥1.0	0.22			-	-1 <u>H</u> -1				
BMW	/ > Automatic sele	ectión > Autó scan	_	_			_	Ve	12.46V
T	opology	List					-		26% 🗹
1	Engine-DME	digital motor ele	ctronics					Fault 5	1108-
2	Electronic tr	ansmission contr	rol transmissi	on manage	ment			Passing Fault	ine.
3	ABS-DSC							Pass/Nu Fault	m
4	ACSM (Airb	ag-Advanced Cra	sh Safety Mo	dule)				PassiVo Fault)mp-
5	INSTR (Instr	ument Cluster)						PassiNo Fault	
6	EMF (Parkin	ng Brake)						Pass No Fault	1200
	Tire pressur	e control						Scanning	reader
8	Car access	system						Not scanned	(m) .
9	ZGM (Centra	al Gateway Modu	le)					Not scanned	annie
VIN: Info: THA	WBA5A510XGD3/ BMW/5//5281_N2 RL	43241 20/410/		Test pan	Report	Duick erese	Pause	Enter system	ESC
								1.5	-

Figure 0-39 Sample Auto Scan Screen 2

 Tap the button in the Diagnostics Toolbar, and select Save all data to save the PDF document or select Save this page to save the screenshot of the current page.

			and the second second				
MW - Automat	ic selection > Auto >	sân			ve this ner		WCA (12.34)
		2014_0	07 BMW Vehicle Diagn	••••	ve tus pai)e	
BMW	Client Client phone number VIN:	WBA5A510XGD34324		Sa Sa	ve ali data		
	Color Diagnostic path	BMW>Automatic selection>5'_F10>528i scan>	i_N20>THA_RL>2014_07>D34324	Sut Eng 11>Auto Mil	i model line sage	F10/THA_RL	
Verview							
verview total of 23 v lease analyze	shiole systems ha	ve been scanned , amo	ong which 3 system have faul ault components.	ts with the r	iumber of 10.	For the sake of s	alety driving,
Overview A total of 23 v Ilease analyzo Oystem statu	chicle systems ha the report carefu s report	ve been scanned , amo Ily and repair related fa	ong which 3 system have faul ault components.	ts with the r	uumber of 10.	For the sake of s	alety driving,
Vverview A total of 23 v lease analyzo Nystem statu	ehicle systems ha the report carefu s report	ve been scanned , arm liv and repair related fa	ong which 3 system have faul ault components.	ts with the r	number of 10.	For the sake of s writes of MDs	alety-driving, Status
Overview A total of 23 v lease analyze System statu ivenem ingine-DME c	eliticle systems ha the report carefu s report ligital motor elec:	ve been scanned , am Ily and repair related fa Iryonics	ong which 3 system have faul ault components.	ts with the r	number of 10.	For the sake of s winter of DTDs 5	alety driving, Stolos Fault
verview total of 23 v lease analyzo ystem statu ystem ngine-DME o lectronic tra	ehiole systems ha the report carefu s report ligital motor elect	ve been scanned , ame Ily and repair related fa tronics	ong which 3 system have fault ault components. gement	ts with the r	written of 10.	For the Sake of s umber of PPD 5 0	alety driving, Bolon Fault Pass

Figure 0-40 Sample Auto Scan Screen 3

2019-08-02_03-41-50.pdf		= 4 :
Addr:	ESSION BY:	
2014_07 BMW Vehicle Diagnostic Report		
Customer:	Make: BMW	
Contact Phone:	Year: 2014_07	
VIN: WBA5A510XGD343241	Model: 5/528i_N20	
License Plate:	Sub Model: F10/THA_RL	
Color:	Engine:	
Path: BMW>Automatic selection>5' F10>528i N20>THA RL>2014 07>D343241>Auto s	Mileage: can>	
VERVIEW 'otal of 2' vehicle system was scanned, of which 1 of the systems were fault and the Irepair related fault components.	number of faults was 5. For safe driving, Please ca	efully analyze the repo
verview total of 2 whicle system was scaused, of which 1 of the systems were fault and the repair related fault components. /stem status report	number of Taults was 5. For safe driving, Please ca	efully analyze the repo
verview total of 2 vehicle system was scaused, of which 1 of the systems were fault and the repair related fault components. /stem status report	number of Bulls was 5. For safe driving, Please cu	refully analyze the repo
verview total of 2 vehicle system was seaued, of which 1 of the systems were fault and the d repair related fault components. system status report astem ngine-DME digital motor electronics.	number of Bults was 5. For safe driving, Please cu DT C Count 3	ectually analyze the report Status Fault
verview total of 2 vehicle system was scanned, of which 1 of the systems were fault and the drepair related fault components. system status report stem ngine-DMF, digital motor electronics ectronic transmission control transmission management.	number of Faults was 5. For sofe driving, Please ca DTC Count 5 0	cfully analyze the repo Status Fault Pass
verview total of 2 vehicle system was seamed, of which 1 of the systems were fault and the repair related fault components. /stem stem agine-DMF. digital motor electronics ectronic transmission control transmission management. TC Details	aunder of Builts was 5. For safe driving, Please ca DTC Count S O	efully analyze the repo Status Fault Pass
verview total of 2 vehicle system was scaused, of which 1 of the systems were fault and the repair related fault components. stem stem ingine-DME digital motor electronics ectronic transmission control transmission management. IC Details IC Details IC Space	number of Bulls was 5. For safe driving, Please ca IFTC Count 5 0	efaily analyze the repo Status Fault Pass

Figure 0-41 Sample PDF Document Screen

- c) Via the functions on the Navigation Bar:
 - The diagnostic report can also be viewed from such diagnostics function screens including Auto scan, Read codes, Live data, and Active test. Tap the
 button in the Diagnostics Toolbar, and select Save all data to save the PDF document or select Save this page to save the screen shot of the current page.

BMW v1.00.22	۵	F	\$	•	0	B	1		
BMW > Automatin	selection > Auto scart > I	Engine-DME	digital motor electr	onice > Trouble c	odes			VO	±€ 12.31V
			F	ault Codes					
utc	Status Description								DTC guide
121533	Permanent Charging pressure, ambient pressure, comparison: charging pressure too low						۲	P	
135908	Permanent		Valvetronic se	rvomotor posi	tion sensors: s	supply voltage	missing	0	导
1C3110	Permanent	nanent Engine oil pressure/temperature sensor, electrical: fault						0	-
1F1A90	Permanent		Digital Motor E voltage out of	Electronics (D) valid range	AE), monitorin	g, 5V sénsor s	upply:	0	R.
1F1A91	Permanent		Digital Motor E voltage out of	ectronics (D) valid range	AE), monitorin	g, 5V sensor s	upply 2:	0	P
/IN:WBA5A510XG hfo:BMW/5/5281 IHA, RL	iD343241 IN20/F10/		DTC guide	Freeze	Search	Read codes	Erase		ESC
THA_RL			guide	frame		codes	codes	68	

4.12 Exit Diagnostics

The Diagnostics application operates while communication with the vehicle is still active. It is important to properly exit from the diagnostics operation interface to stop all communications with the vehicle before closing the Diagnostics application.

Damage to the vehicle electronic control module (ECM) may occur if communication is disrupted. Ensure all forms of communication links such as data cable, USB cable, and wireless or wired network, are properly connected throughout the test. Exit all interfaces before disconnecting the test cable and power supply.

> To exit the Diagnostics application

- 1. On an active diagnostic screen, tap the **Back** or **ESC** functional button to exit a diagnostic session; Or
- 2. Tap the **Vehicle Swap** button in the diagnostics toolbar to return to the Vehicle Menu screen.
- 3. On the vehicle menu screen, tap the **Home** button in the top toolbar; or tap the **Back** button in the navigation bar at the bottom of the screen. Or
- 4. Tap the **Home** button in the diagnostics toolbar to exit the application directly and return to the MaxiSys Main Screen.

Now, the Diagnostics application is no longer communicating with the vehicle and it is safe to open other MaxiSys applications, or exit the MaxiSys Diagnostic System and return to the Android System's Home screen.

5 Repair Assist

Repair Assist offers an all-round fault-clearing function, through which you can access continually updated TSB, detailed repair information and professional troubleshooting. To ensure accuracy and reliability, it is based on a massive database of real shop repairs and technical guidance. Repair Assist also employs the latest cloud computing technology to match the specific DTC with the exact vehicle model.

5.1 Access Vehicle Systems

Before entering Repair Assist, connect MaxiSys MS909 to the test vehicle through the VCI device. For detailed procedure, see *Chapter 4 Diagnostics*.

When the tablet is connected to the vehicle, tap **Auto scan** in the main menu and turn on the ignition. For Volkswagen, Audi, BMW, Ford, Land Rover, Jaguar, Chrysler, Fiat and Volvo, a topology is added to map the relations among vehicle systems.



Figure 5-1 System Topology

5.2 View the DTCs

To view the DTCs of the vehicle systems:

- 1. Tap **Fault scan** at the bottom of the **List** tab page to scan all the systems, as shown in Figure 5-2.
- 2. Tap the grey arrow to the right of an item to enter the **Fault Codes** page.
- 3. Tap the **DTC guide** button to the right of a DTC to view the corresponding DTC guide, as shown in Figure 5-4.

BMW 91.60.92	血	Î	¢	8	0	B	1	
BMW > Aucomatic set	lection > Auto scan						ve	0 39 12 464
Topology	List					-		26% 🕑
1 Engine-DME	ë digital motor ele	ectronics					Fault (S	1000
2 Electronic tr	ransmission cont	trol transmis	sion manage	ment			Pass/No Fault	ines.]
3 ABS-DSC							PassiNg Fault	itute
4 ACSM (Airb	ag-Advanced Cra	ish Safety M	odule)				PassiNo Fault	ttele
5 INSTR (Inst	rument Cluster)						PassiNo Fault	
6 EMF (Parkin	ng Brake)						PassiNo Fault	1006
7 Tire pressu	re control						Scanning	
8 Car access	system						Not scanned	10000
9 ZGM (Centr	al Gateway Modi	ule)					Not scanned	1100
VIN:WBA5A510X6D3 (nfo: BMW/5/528LN3 THA_RL	43241 20/F10/		Tast. plui	Report	Quick	Pause	Enter system	ESC
• *				í M		Fr		후 言 146 - 3:1
			Figu	re 5-2	DTC S	can		
BMW V1 06.22	۵	Z	٥	*		B	1	
EMW > Avformatic ast	ection > Auto ecan >	Engre UME &	pital motor elect	Annica = Trouble o	20064		VO	C212,31V
				Could Produce				

		Fault Codes					
1000	(DAMO((0))DH						are gu
Permanent	Charging pre- pressure too	slaine, iimbien Iow	i firelanne, com	pari inni cham	ing	0	P
Permanent	Valvetronic s	ervomotor pos	ition sensors s	upply voltage	missing	0	
Permanent	Engine oil pro	essuite/temper	ature sensor, ek	ectrical: fault		0	P
Permanent	Digital Motor voltage out o	Electronics (D of valid range	ME), monitoring), 5V sensor su	upply.	0	P
Permanent	Digital Motor voltage out o	Electronics (D	ME), monitoring	1. 5V sensor si	upply 2:	0	-
						-	_
00343241 51_N20/FTD/	DTC	Freeze	Search	Read	Erase		ESC
	Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Hermanent	Permanent Charging por Permanent Valvetronic s Permanent Engine oil pro Permanent Engine oil pro Permanent Olipitel Motor Vermanent Olipitel Motor Permanent Olipitel Motor Permanent Olipitel Motor	Fault Codes Fault Codes Demanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (0 Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (0 Permanent Voltage out of valid range	Fault Codes: Fault Codes: Fault Codes: Fault Codes: Fermanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring Permanent Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring Permanent Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitor	Partilit Codes: Decomption Permanent Charging pressure, hot one Permanent Charging pressure, hot one Permanent Valvetronic servomotor position sensors: supply voltage r Permanent Engine oil pressure/remperature sensor, electrical: fault Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor su voltage out of valid range Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor su voltage out of valid range Permanent Valvetronic voltage out of valid range	Fault Codes: Description Permanent Charging pressure, individual pressure, computing thanged pressure too tow Permanent Valvetronic servomotor position sensors: supply voltage missing Permanent Engine oil pressure/remperature sensor, electrical: fault Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 6V sensor supply, voltage out of valid range Permanent Organization clicetronics (DME), monitoring, 6V sensor supply 2: voltage out of valid range Permanent Organization clicetronics (DME), monitoring, 6V sensor supply 2: voltage out of valid range DTC Freeze Read Erase	Fault Codes Description Permanent Charging preduce, indeen(preduce), comparison tranging Permanent Valvetronic servomotor position sensors: supply voltage missing Permanent Engine oil pressure/temperature sensor, electrical: fault Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Oigital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply Permanent Digital Motor Electronics (DME), monitoring, 5V sensor supply

Figure 5-3 Fault Codes
5.3 DTC Guide

The repair case consists of the following sections:

- 1. Intelligent Diagnostics - displays possible faults the DTC indicates.
- 2. Technical Service Bulletin - contains DTC-related recalls, TSB, and OEM campaigns.



Figure 5-4 DTC Guide

- 3. **DTC Analysis** – provides repair assistance information related to the fault code.
- 4. **Test Plan** – generates test plans for common fault codes with their respective weights taken into account.

- 5. Troubleshooting clarifies the steps for determining and clearing faults.
- 6. **Component Measurement** specifies guidance for measuring DTC-related components quickly and accurately.
- 7. Relevant Cases offers relevant fault-clearing cases for reference.

5.4 Technical Service Bulletin

Technical Service Bulletin provides a tool for matching DTCs with relevant TSB and OEM campaigns, shortening search time and simplifying operation procedure.



Figure 5-5 TSB Section

A DTC can relate to several TSBs, which are listed in the TSB section. To view all TSBs, tap the arrow in the upper right corner of the section to open the TSB page, as



shown in Figure 5-6.

Figure 5-6 TSB Page

You can tap and view any TSB in the page, as shown in Figure 5-7.

	BMW v9.00.851	1	A	\$	串	0	B	1	
Technical Service Bulletion ACTIVE BLIND SPOT ASSIST INTERMITTENTLY INOPERATIVE TECHNICAL SERVICE BULLETIN Reference: Namoer(s) MERICEDES-ABENZ L172,40-9-0592915 Vension 1, Date of Baue: June 17,2014 MOBEL: 204.2 with code 237/804+054, MOCEL: 204.3 with node 237/804+054, MOCEL: 204.3 with code 237/804+054, MOCEL: 204.3 with node 237/804+054, MOCEL: 204.3 with code 237/804+054, MOCEL: 204.3 with node 237/804+054, MOCEL: 212 with code 237/804+054, MOCEL: 207 with code 237/804+054 COMPLAINT Active Blind Spot Assist Intermittently Inoperative - Alas that yellow Indicator larges in the cassido mirror light up: - Alative code A80811 is logged in the door control with finalt memory. - Alate fightion off/or the function is temporarity reasond MIC Intermittent	Marcedos-Banz - Automatio sel	ection - Auto s	can + Interligent =	agrees the a					
Active BLIND SPOT ASSIST INTERMITTENTLY INOPERATIVE TECHNICAL SERVICE BULLETIN Reference: Namoar(s) MERCEDES-BEN2 L172:40-P-059215 Vension 1, Date of Baue, June 17,2014 MERCEDES-BEN2 MODEL 204.2 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 204.3 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 204.2 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 207 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 204.3 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 207 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 204.3 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 207 with code 237/804+054 DESIGN GROUP 72.40 Door centrel				Technica	al Service Bu	lletion			
Reference Namou(s) L172.40-P-059215 Version 1, Date of Issue June 17,2014 MERCEDES-BENZ MODEL 204.2 with code 227/B04+054, MODEL 204.3 with code 237/B04+054, MODEL 204.2 with code 237/B04+054, MODEL 204.	ACTIVE BLIND SPOT A TECHNICAL SERVICE I	SSIST INT	ERMITTENTI	LY INOPERA	TIVE				
MERICEDES-REFIZ MODEL 204.2 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 204.3 with code 237/804+054, MODEL 201 with code 237/804+054,	Reference Number(s)	LI72.40	P-059215 Ve	ersion 1, Date	of issue June	17,2014			
DESIGN GROUP 72-40 Door control COMPLAINT Active Blind Spot Assist Intermittently Inoperative The instrument cluster displays the message "Active Blind Spot Assist Impensive". Assist have allow indicator language in the door control unit fault memory. Assist logged in the door control unit fault memory. Astre lightion off/co. the lunction is temporarily restored. We work intermittee: CGO Bac	MERCEDES-BENZ	MODEL code 23	204.2 with an	ode 237/804 MODEL 212 v	+054. MODEL with code 237	204.3 with co 804+054, MC	00 237/804+	054, MODEL code 237/8	204.0 with 54+054
COMPLAINT Active Bind Spot Assid Informittently Inoperative. * The Instrument cluster displays the message "Active Bind Spot Assid Impenative". Aladi the aview indicator function in the autiside material light up. # paid code ABOBTI is logged in the door control with fault memory. # After (genition bif/ao, the function is temporarily restored. We were externation: Go Bac	DESIGN GROUP	72.40 D	oor control						
The instrument cluster displays the message "Active Bind Spot Assist Integentive" Alao tha valiow indicator langes in the catelob mirror light up: Fault code AB0811 is logged in the door centrel unit fault memory. After ignition off/on, the function is temporarily restored. Wi Mode intermetien: Go Bac	COMPLAINT	f Intermitte	autiv inoperat	ive.					
Alad tha yellow indicator langes in the autidia minor light up: Fault code A80811 is logged in the door control unit fault numery. After ignition off/on, the function is temporarily restored we we concernition: Co Bac	. The instrument cluste	er displays	the message	Active Bin	d Spot Assid	inoperative"			
	Also the yellow indica	tor lamps	in the autside	a mirror light	т ыр:				
Affer (grition off/on, the (unction is temporarily restored. We Which internation: Go Bac	Fault code A80811 is	logged in t	he door cont	rol unit fault	memory.				
Vision Internation: Go Bac	 After ignition off/on. 	the (unctio	n is temporal	illy restored					
	VM Vehicle information:								Go Back
	-	-	-	-	-		-		- Baranasa

Figure 5-7 TSB Information

5.5 DTC Analysis

DTC analysis contains conditions for fault memory entry, action in service and fault

8MW 91.00.75	۵	T	٥	•	.0	B	1	
Marpades-Barg - As	atomiatic selection - Auto e	ain + Intelligent D	agiti (Ga					VCh ERITARY
				D90D1F				
Condition for fa	ault memory entry:							
Fault code entr	ry after 1 second							
Action In servic	e:							
1) Check plug o 2) Read out ren 3) Check remo	connection and line t note control service te control receiver.	between CAS status by but	and remote c on operation	ontrol receive on remote ke	n X			
Fault effect and	l breakdown warning	4						
Failure of Com	fort Access, conveni	ent starting, n	emote contro	l services, all	remote keys, t	wireless vehic	le access	
VIIN: Veficke information	e.							Go Back
↑ ô		o o	*0	M	vci ≽	6 F.		⑦ 〒 100% ┃ 14:36

effect and breakdown warning.

Figure 5-8 DTC Analysis

5.6 Test Plan

Test plan specifies information of the items to be tested, including type, description, status and priority. The higher the priority, the earlier the components related should be tested. You can tap the arrow following each service function to view the



corresponding DTCs and tap again to collapse them.

Figure 5-9 Test Plan

5.7 Troubleshooting

Troubleshooting provides a series of operations for finding out the reason that causes the DTC. It is not only introduced in words, but also in images and videos, as shown in



the following figure.

Figure 5-10 Troubleshooting

5.8 Component Measurement

The component measurement section gives general description, connection guidance and test guidance for using an oscilloscope to troubleshoot the fault.



Figure 5-11 Component Measurement

5.9 Relevant Cases

This section offers relevant fault-clearing cases for your reference. You can study cases on similar faults to get an all-round understanding of how to fix the fault with your vehicle, as shown in Figure 5-12.



Figure 5-12 Relevant Cases



The Service section is specially designed to provide quick access to the vehicle systems for various scheduled service and maintenance tasks. The typical service operation screen is a series of menu driven executive commands. Follow on-screen instructions to select appropriate execution options, enter correct values or data, and perform necessary actions. The application will display detailed instructions to complete selected service operations.

After entering each special function, the screen will display two application choices: Diagnosis and Hot Functions. The Diagnosis enables the reading and clearing of codes which is sometimes necessary after completing certain special functions. Hot Functions consists of sub functions of the selected special function.



Figure 6-1 Sample Service Menu

Several most commonly used services are described in this chapter.

6.1 Oil Reset Service

Perform reset for the Engine Oil Life system, which calculates an optimal oil life change interval depending on the vehicle driving conditions and climate. The Oil Life Reminder must be reset each time the oil is changed, so the system can calculate when the next oil change is required.

NOTE

- 1. Always reset the engine oil life to 100% after every oil change.
- All required work must be carried out before the service indicators are reset. Failure to do so may result in incorrect service values and cause DTCs to be stored by the relevant control module.
- 3. For some vehicles, the scan tool can reset additional service lights such as maintenance cycle and service interval. On BMW vehicles for example, service resets include engine oil, spark plugs, front/rear brakes, coolant, particle filter, brake fluid, micro filter, vehicle inspection, exhaust emission inspection and vehicle checks.

6.2 Electric Parking Brake (EPB) Service

This function has a multitude of usages to maintain the electronic braking system safely and effectively. The applications include deactivating and activating the brake control system, assisting with brake fluid control, opening and closing brake pads, and setting brakes after disc or pad replacement.

6.2.1 EPB Safety

It can be dangerous to perform Electric Parking Brake (EPB) system maintenance, so before you begin the service work, please keep these rules in mind.

- ✓ Ensure that you are fully familiar with the braking system and its operation before commencing any work.
- ✓ The EPB control system may be required to be deactivated before carrying out any maintenance/diagnostic work on the brake system. This can be done from the tool menu.
- ✓ Only perform maintenance work when the vehicle is stationary and on level ground.
- ✓ Ensure that the EPB control system is reactivated after the maintenance work has been completed.

NOTE

Autel accepts no responsibility for any accident or injury arising from the maintenance of the Electric Parking Brake system.

6.3 Tire Pressure Monitoring System (TPMS) Service

This function allows you to quickly look up the tire sensor IDs from the vehicle ECU, as well as to perform TPMS replacement and reset procedures after tire sensors are replaced.

6.4 Battery Management System (BMS) Service

BMS allows the tool to evaluate the battery charge state, monitor the close-circuit current, register the battery replacement, activate the rest state of the vehicle, and charge the battery via the diagnostic socket.

NOTE

- 1. This function is not supported by all vehicles.
- 2. The sub functions and actual test screens of the BMS may vary by vehicle, please follow the on-screen instructions to make correct option selection.

The vehicle may use either a sealed lead-acid battery or an Absorbed Glass Mat (AGM) battery. Lead acid battery contains liquid sulphuric acid and can spill when overturned. AGM battery (known as VRLA battery, valve regulated lead acid) also contains sulphuric acid, but the acid is contained in glass mats between terminal plates.

It is recommended that the replacement aftermarket battery has the same specifications, such as capacity and type, as the exiting battery. If the original battery is replaced with a different type of battery (e.g. a lead-acid battery is replaced with an AGM battery) or a battery with a different capacity (mAh), the vehicle may require reprogramming of the new battery type, in addition to, performing the battery reset. Consult the vehicle manual for additional vehicle-specific information.

6.5 Diesel Particle Filter (DPF) Service

The Diesel Particle Filter (DPF) function manages DPF regeneration, DPF component replacement teach-in and DPF teach-in after replacing the engine control unit.

The ECM monitors driving style and selects a suitable time to employ regeneration. Cars driven a lot at idling speed and low load will attempt to regenerate earlier than cars driven more with higher load and speed. For regeneration to take place, a prolonged high exhaust temperature must be obtained.

In the event of the car being driven in such a way that regeneration is not possible, i.e., frequent short journeys, a diagnostic trouble code will eventually be registered in addition to the DPF light and "Check Engine" indicators displaying. A service regeneration can be requested in the workshop using the diagnostic tool.

Before performing a forced DPF regeneration using the tool, check the following items:

- The fuel light is not on.
- No DPF-relevant faults are stored in system.
- The vehicle has the specified engine oil.
- The oil for diesel is not contaminated.

IMPORTANT

Before diagnosing the problem vehicle and attempting to perform an emergency regeneration, it is important to obtain a full diagnostic log and read out relevant measured value blocks.

NOTE

- 1. The DPF will not regenerate if the engine management light is on, or there is a faulty EGR valve.
- The ECU must be re-adapted when replacing the DPF and when topping up the fuel additive Eolys.

If the vehicle needs to be driven in order to perform a DPF service, a second person is needed for the function. One person should drive the vehicle while the other person observes the screen on the Tool. Do not attempt to drive and observe the scan tool at the same time. This is dangerous and puts your life and the lives of other motors and pedestrians at risk.

6.6 Immobilizer (IMMO) Service

An immobilizer is an anti-theft mechanism that prevents an automobile's engine from starting unless the correct ignition key or other device is present. This device prevents thieves from starting the car by a method known as hot wiring. Most new vehicles have an immobilizer as standard equipment. An important advantage of this system is that it doesn't require the car owner to activate it; it operates automatically. An immobilizer is considered as providing much more effective anti-theft protection than an audible alarm alone; many auto insurance companies offer lower rates for vehicles that are equipped with an immobilizer.

As an anti-theft device, an immobilizer disables one of the systems needed to start a car's engine, usually the fuel supply or the ignition. This is accomplished by radio frequency identification between a transponder in the ignition key and a device called a radio frequency reader in the steering column. When the key is placed in the ignition, the transponder sends a signal with a unique identification code to the reader, which relays it to a receiver in the vehicle computer control module. If the code is correct, the computer allows the fuel supply and ignition systems to operate and start the car. If the code is incorrect or absent, the computer disables the system, and the car will be unable to start until the correct key is placed in the ignition.

The IMMO service can disable a lost vehicle key and program the replacement key fob. One or more replacement key fobs can be programmed.

6.7 Steering Angle Sensor (SAS) Service

SAS Calibration permanently stores the current steering wheel position as the straight-ahead position in the SAS EEPROM. Therefore, the front wheels and the steering wheel must be set exactly to the straight-ahead position before calibration. In addition, the VIN is also read from the instrument cluster and stored permanently in the SAS EEPROM. On successful completion of calibration, the SAS fault memory is automatically cleared.

Calibration must always be carried out after the following operations:

- Steering wheel replacement
- SAS replacement
- Any maintenance that involves opening the connector hub from the SAS to the column
- Any maintenance or repair work on the steering linkage, steering gear or other related mechanism
- Wheel alignment or wheel track adjustment
- Accident repairs where damage to the SAS or assembly, or any part of the steering system may have occurred

NOTE

- Autel accepts no responsibility for any accident or injury arising from servicing the SAS system. When interpreting DTCs retrieved from the vehicle, always follow the manufacturer's recommendation for repair.
- 2. All software screens shown in this manual are examples, and actual test screens may vary by test vehicle. Pay attention to the menu titles and onscreen instructions to make correct option selections.
- 3. Before starting procedure, make sure the vehicle has an ESC button. Look for button on dash.

7 Remote Programming

Remote Programming Operation is a support function based on data transmission through Cloud platform, providing remote programming for solving diagnostic and repair issues.

7.1 General Introduction

The remote programming operation uses the Cloud platform to build an invisible bridge that connects the client diagnostic tablet with experts that have OEM software information. The following diagram presents an overview of the principles of the Remote Programming function.



Figure 7-1 Principles of Remote Programming

Name	Description				
VCI device	Build a link between the vehicle and the Autel diagnostic tablet.				
MaxiSys MS909	Tap the Remote Programming module on its screen for uploading diagnostic data and other questions.				

Name	Description
Cloud platform	Transmit diagnostic data from the vehicle side to the experts, making it possible for the experts doing OEM remote programming for vehicle diagnosis.
Experts	Provide technical support for diagnostic troubles based on OEM software.

The Remote Programming is a newly developed module which supplements the MaxiSys MS909 in vehicle diagnosis. It overcomes the distance problem and expands the functions of the MaxiSys MS909 diagnostic tablet. Apart from that, Remote Programming provides instant support for dealing with new faults in diagnosing the latest vehicle models.

🖉 NOTE

Except for the above professional functions, Remote Programming cannot be ignored also because the expert support is free of charge.

7.2 Getting Started

Before getting started, a proper connection between the vehicle and VCI is required. When faults have been detected, there is no way to solve it because of OEM restriction. It is time for you to log in to the Remote Programming module on the MaxiSys tablet. Remote Programming has a quite easy access channel, just follow the steps below:

> To open the Remote Programming application

- 1. Tap the **Remote Programming** icon to enter the Homepage. (VIN is auto-matched during the procedure.)
- 2. Select relevant vehicle information (brand, model, and year).
- 3. Tap the **Finish** icon in the upper right corner of the screen.

00101000747	00101020740	00101000740
@2131230747 #	@2131230748 All	@2131230749 All
(GM) Others	500	2007
A	GRANDE PUNTO	
Abarth	PUNTO EVO.	
Acura	CC-Cinquecento	
Alfa	FF-500	
Alpheon		
AstonMartin		

Figure 7-2 Sample Vehicle Selection Screen

7.3 Operation

The Remote Programming Operation process consists of 3 main steps, namely, order submission, order confirmation, and the most critical, remote programming. Besides, historical order serves as a reminder of your previous data information.

7.3.1 Submit Order

When you see the **Service** and **Me** tabs at the top, you have entered the **Submit Order** page.

and a second state	HTTIMHON				
• Contact	Autel US			Phone	1-855-2883587
Address	175 Central Ave, Suite 200 Farmingdale,	NY 117	735		
iorros					
• Vehicle	benz B(246) 2011-2017		8	Tics before p 1. Your order	will get response from experts or service
1997	WDDFH33X49J482592			2. It is manda WiFi network	atory that Maxisys fables is connected to
• Service(3)	Module Programing/Electronic transmission control for double-plate clutch transmission	\$0	• •	4. Reprogram Tailed	be connected to J2534 box or VCMI box rening and coding a used module might be
	1 Services and the service of the se		-		
	Software Calibration Number (SCN) coding/ Electrical power steering	S0	•		
	Software Calibration Number (SCN) coding/ Electrical power steering Diagnostics/Electrical power steering	\$0 \$0	0		
toto	Software Calibration Number (SCN) coding/ Electrical power steering Diagnostics/Electrical power steering	\$0 \$0	0		
tota Now-	Software Calibration Number (SCN) coding/ Electrical power stearing Diagnostics/Electrical power stearing	\$0 \$0	0		
Rom - Horo	Software Calibration Number (SON) coding/ Electrical power isleming Diagnostics/Electrical power isleming	50 (0		

Figure 7-3 Sample Submit Order Screen

Input the Technician information and Service information according to the notes prompted.

In the Service information section, there are 3 blue buttons to the right of the boxes. These buttons are available for quick filling. For detailed operation, see the table below.

Table 7-2 Functions of But	tons
----------------------------	------

lcon	Description
Œ	For selecting vehicle brands and models.
1	For scanning the VIN code of the vehicle.
+	For adding exact Service types.

The **Note contents** in red color on the middle right side are tips for doing the remote programming connection. While the **Notes** at the bottom are designed for writing vehicle troubles for experts' reference.

After all information have been input, tap the **Submit** button to proceed.

⊘NOTE

Each box that starts with a red asterisk must be filled. The information input must be valid and genuine.

7.3.2 Confirm Order

As the order has been submitted, you are directed to the Confirm Order page. Make a quick check about the contents that you have input before and then tap the blue button OK to continue.



Figure 7-4 Sample Confirm Order Screen 1

If you do not want to continue with this order, or if you find any errors in your order, you can tap the **Cancel** button in the lower right corner to terminate the procedure.

echman m	demanan.			
Devities	Autel US	Phone 1-855-2883	1587	
Address.	175 Central Ave, Suire 200 Farmingdale, NY 117			
mide				
Vehicki	benz/B(246)/2011-2017	Tips before programming begins: 1. Your order will get response from exports or service		
MM	W0DFH33X49J482592		2. 6 is manufacery treat Maxilian Will network	a Labies in conversed in
Service(4)	Diagnostics/Stationary Heater (STH)	80	4. Reprogramming and cooling failed	a used module might be
	Module Programing/Navigation module	50		
	Software Calibration Number (SCN) coding/ Navigation module	50		
	Module Programing/Electronic transmission control for double-plate clutch transmission	50		
0000				
		0.00		

Figure 7-5 Sample Confirm Order Screen 2

⊘NOTE

This Cancel button can be pressed only before the expert takes your order.

After the expert takes your order, a message will appear asking for your confirmation. You need to confirm this order within 5 minutes. Otherwise, this order will be canceled automatically



Figure 7-6 Sample Confirm Order Screen 3

7.3.3 Remote Programming

Once the expert has received your order, the **Remote Programming** page appears. At this point, the expert starts to perform remote programming. If you want to see how the expert programs, tap **Remote desktop** in the upper right corner. Once the expert accepts your request, you can access the expert's computer desktop.

7.3.3.1 Request Accepted

When the expert accepts your request, you will see a shared desktop showing a series of programming operations as in the figure below.

	Remote programmin	g	0
haring expert desktop			VCb ED 12.90V
KENTRY			-
> Trent + Product group			Cely Selection
ercedes-Benz Parcegran Via Saar (Lange) Tamo (Spingangan (Parce)	d managements, Spectrassical		
ase enter the identification number of your volvels or your industrial major (Realise number of an industrial major assembly, the work manufactures	r assembly. The cleghostic system accepts both E, repear vers r code is immateria:	te isomification members (FINs) and expert vehicle t	sensticas on numbers (NVHs). If you enter the
Amosel wOCFH23X65J63952			
		11	
2	and the second second		102 mm
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Figure 7-7 Sample Remote Programming Screen 1



Figure 7-8 Sample Remote Programming Screen 2



Figure 7-9 Sample Remote Programming Screen 3

These operations are based on the OEM software which authorizes the expert to do programming and help you diagnose the vehicle.

7.3.3.2 Request Rejected

If the expert rejects your request, you will receive a rejection message.



Figure 7-10 Sample Request Rejected Page

7.3.3.3 Programming Finished

When Remote Programming is finished, a message will be returned saying **Programming is over, please wait for expert to upload the report...**

After that, you will be redirected to the **Program Report** page that shows the status, **Success** or **Failure**, of each programming procedure.



Figure 7-11 Sample Programming Report Page

NOTE

Ø

A PDF report file is attached to each record. Tap it to see the detailed output information.

7.3.4 Historical Orders

Historical orders are orders completed or not completed out of subjective or objective reasons, such as proactive cancellation, unexpected networking disconnection, or unexpected power-off.

Tap the Me button, and you will see the historical orders.



Figure 7-12 Sample Historical Orders Page

Both Completed and Incomplete orders are recorded in this part. For Completed orders, the programming report is available if you tap the blue button **Report**. For Incomplete orders, you can resubmit them.

> To resubmit the incomplete orders

- 1. Tap the **Submit** button, and the **Incomplete orders** page appears.
- 2. Check and confirm the information on the **Incomplete orders** page.
- 3. Tap **OK** to continue.
- 4. Wait for the expert to take orders.
- 5. A **Message** saying **Expert has received the order** appears Tap **OK** after you confirm the message.

NOTE

If you do not confirm the order within five minutes, the system will cancel it.



MaxiFix is an online community, based on the ever-expanding cloud database that provides abundant information and resources to help find efficient solutions to all kinds of vehicle troubles. It serves as a forum that enables users to network with other MaxiSys users and with Autel technicians. Users can post questions and answers, share tips and search for repair cases with proven documented fixes.

MaxiFix is an expanding resource as the database is updated daily with reported solution cases and advisory reports from MaxiSys users worldwide.

Information in the MaxiFix database is organized into a series of diagnostic tips that designed to help you locate the cause of particular problems of the test vehicle and quickly find solutions to them.

8.1 Getting Started

Tap the blue MaxiFix icon. You will be automatically logged in as the MaxiFix system identifies the serial number and password of the MS909 tablet and its associated registered user.

8.2 Navigation

The MaxiFix full screen layout will display upon opening, as shown in Figure 8-1 below.



Figure 8-1 MaxiFix Home Page

The MaxiFix home page contains three main areas:

- Navigation Bar the top navigation bar allows you to switch between different sections of MaxiFix. The bell-shaped icon and the bust icon to the right lead to My Messages and Personal Center respectively.
- 2. **Function Menu** the function menu below the navigation bar displays tabs and functional buttons.
- 3. **Main Screen** the main screen displays questions and answers, problems and solutions, comments and thumb-ups, images and videos as well as other information posted by Autel users.

My Messages & Personal Center

My Messages

The bell-shaped icon leads to messages about your activities in MaxiFix.

Tap the icon to enter the **My Messages** page, where you can see a list of messages read or unread. If a piece of message is not read, the entry is in dark black; otherwise, the entry turns to gray.

The unread messages will be set as read once you tap the **All set as read** button. If there are too many messages, you can tap the **Clear** button to clear the messages.

Personal Center

Personal Information	Question	Answer	Share	Favorite (4)	Daily Task
-	Zhangi 🖉				
	Dally Check	in		() A	chentleation
Boen					
	Account: V1DG000	000008	Registration Time :	2019-06-04 02:04 48	
	Cellphone 1861234 Number	1234	Last Login Time :	2019-07-09 09 30 10	
	Code : 2193d78	e866d11e9a1b412a[76	(7247c		
Support					
Switch /	Account				
-					

Figure 8-2 Personal Center Page

Personal Center consists of six tab pages, including **Personal Information**, **Question**, **Answer**, **Share**, **Favorite**, and **Daily Task**. Each tab page shows a different aspect of user activity in MaxiFix.

Personal Information – contains technician accreditation, support and account operations.

- To apply for technician accreditation
 - 1. Tap the **Authentication** button and enter the **Technician Accreditation** page.
 - 2. Fill in the information required.
 - 3. Upload intelligible pictures of your technician certificate.
 - 4. Tap **Submit** to have your application reviewed.
 - 5. Wait for your application to be passed. As long as your information meets the required standards, you will get a authentication soon.

Back in the main screen of Personal Information, **Support** offers a feedback channel for sharing user experience in MaxiFix and viewing FAQs. MaxiFix allows other accounts to log in. You can tap **Switch Account** to switch to another account.

Question - displays the posted questions in the MaxiFix community.

Answer – displays your answers to questions.

Share – displays tips for troubleshooting and diagnosis.

Favorite – displays questions, shares, and repair cases you saved before.

Daily task – displays various tasks with reward coins. You can finish daily tasks to earn reward coins and community experience values. The daily tasks include sharing tips, posting questions, and answering pending questions. You can tap the **Go to finish** button to the right of each task to earn the provided coins.

8.3 Operations

The top navigation bar consists of Home, Real Fixes, Academy and Integral Mall, the functions of which are shown below:

Community – shows questions and answers about vehicle problems and fault code solutions. Moreover, this section offers a good chance to blend in the MaxiFix community.

Real Fixes – presents real cases collected from actual shop repairs in an easy-to-understand and professional manner.

Academy – offers an online learning and help platform featuring videos and query tools.

Integral Mall – displays a series of Autel diagnostic products, such as diagnostic tablets, endoscopes, and oscilloscopes. You can get them with the required number of reward coins.

8.3.1 Community

The community section consists of three tab pages.



Figure 8-3 Hottest Questions and Tips

 Newest – displays questions and tips posted by MaxiSys users in order of time. The question mark icon leads a question

Table 8-1: Table of Small Icons in MaxiFix

lcon	Description
?	Signifies what follows is a question.

lcon	Description	
•III	Signifies what follows is a repair tip.	
0	Signifies the number of views.	
$\langle \rangle$	Signifies the number of times the repair tip is adopted.	
•••	Signifies the number of answers to the question.	
	Signifies the number of reward coins provided.	

Each **question** is accompanied with two icons indicating the number of views and answers respectively. Similarly, each repair tip is accompanied with two icons indicating the number of views and adoptions.

Some of the questions are attached with a coin icon, indicating the number of reward coins provided for the best answer. The questioner can raise the number of reward coins to stimulate better solutions.

The orange **Underway** to the right of the questions indicates that the question has been answered by technicians or users but not confirmed by the questioner; while the green **Resolved** indicates that the questioner has confirmed the best answer.

• **Hottest** – displays hot questions with the most replies from experts or users, along with the most views.

For viewing convenience, entries under the Hottest menu are divided in two modes. Tap the question mark icon, and the screen only displays questions posted by users. Tap the bookmark icon, and the screen only shows repair tips shared by users. (For icon functions,

see Table 8-1: Table of Small Icons in MaxiFix)

- **Follow** displays the questions and tips you are following. The **Select Vehicle** button to the left allows you to make a quick selection of specific vehicles.
- > To select a vehicle
 - 1. Tap the blue **Select Vehicle** button to the left.
 - 2. Select from the **Brand** list.
 - 3. Select from the **Model** list.

After selecting a model, the identified vehicle is shown in the **Follow** tab page, with related user-posted questions and tips displayed together with user IDs. Tap one of the matched entries to see the details.

Functional Buttons:

The three functional buttons in the upper right corner are designed to facilitate communications between users and Autel experts.

- Post Question/Tip provides a channel to post questions about vehicle faults and share solutions to diagnostic troubles.
 - > To post a question/tip
 - 1. Tap the **Post Question/Tip** button.
 - 2. Tap the **Select Vehicle** button, select **Year, Brand, Model,** and **Engine** from the lists.
 - 3. Fill in the **Subject** in short phrases or a short question with keyword.
 - 4. Fill in **Credit Reward** as a reward for the best answer.
 - Write your question or expression about vehicle faults in the **Content** box. (Three different posting ways are available, including picture, video and voice.)
 - 6. After all have done above, tap **Submit** in the upper right corner. And your question will be uploaded soon on the list of the Newest.

The steps of posting a sharing tip are similar to posting a question, except that step 4 is not included in **Sharing Tip**.

Once a question has been posted, the entry is presented with the **Question icon**. While a tip has been posted, the entry is presented with the **Service Tip icon**.

 Post Answer – This button is for answering questions posted by other MaxiSys MS909 users.

> To post an answer

- 1. Tap the Post Answer button to enter the Pending Questions page.
- Select To be answered, and you will see a list of unanswered questions. Select Underway, and you will see a list of questions with some but no best answers.

- 3. Tap one question entry, and enter a page with a blue **Post Answer** button to the right.
- 4. Tap the **Post Answer** button to enter the **Reply** page.
- 5. Post your analysis and insights in the Content box.

NOTE

Three different posting methods are available: a maximum of five still images, a video within 15 seconds or a voice up to 3 minutes.

Answer adopted by the questioner will automatically receive reward coins. If your answer is confirmed as the Best Answer, you will receive reward coins from both the system and the questioner.

⊘ NOTE

You can add to answer via the **Continue Answer** button.

• Search – This button enables you to search for answers and solutions.

⊘ NOTE

The most-used keywords will be added into **Hot Search**. **Search History** records the keywords you input.

8.3.2 Real Fixes

In **Real Fixes**, a list of repair cases and troubleshooting tips are collected by way of content instructions and graph analysis. Additionally, some repair cases are attached with videos showing the whole process of troubleshooting.

1	Community Real Fixes Academy Integral Mall				1
a	adred Webuge		1	See	rch
-	2015 Nissan MURANO Intelligent Cruise Control (ICC) Fault			1	117
-	😝 2015) Inspan Malwawa (152 🔹 Town of Aviet Accomposite Spanic Expense	- 69-2	$-d\epsilon$	1	# 11
	🕅 2012 Nissan CEDRIC Abnormal Wear Of Tires				i) mil
-	🖨 3012 Nissan (2010) 2 St. 1. Team of Automobile Service Experi-	99 h	14	5	肥片
	2016 Volkswagen Passat Navigation Function Inoperative After Replacement of Instrument Cluster				-1
-	🖗 2015 Yokowagan Pasan Ademark make make mine 🛔 Tennari Asari kaumaka Seram Tapara	(D+5			中心
	2017 Volkswagen Touareg Lane Change Assist System (Side Assist) Inoperative				7
-	1 Terrin of Aulei voltaming and Aulei Transit Aulei voltamine Service Experi-	 ()) 7 	*		4日2
-	🖻 2015 Toyola Camry Brake Warning Light On				110
-	🚔 2015 Foyota Carry 3.5L 1 Team of Aux) Automobile Server Sawaya	0	16	0	柳片
TOYOTA	2011 Toyota Venza ABS and VSC Warning Light On Due to Open Circuit In Rear Wheel Speed Sensor				
-	🙊 2011 Toyota Venze 3.5z. 🏦 Team of Auki Automotics Service Executi	43-0	ab I	0	44.5
-				. 6	SL = 453

Figure 8-4 Sample Real Fixes Page 1

There are six function parts in Real Fixes, as explained below:

- 1. Signifies the navigation bar
- 2. Signifies the vehicle selection button
- 3. Signifies the keywords search for repair fixes
- 4. Signifies the total search results of keywords searching
- 5. Signifies the repair fixes title and vehicle specification
- 6. Signifies the views and satisfaction for the repair case in MaxiFix community

In the list of real cases, three icons are attached to each fixes entry, making it possible for viewers to evaluate each case entry. For icon meanings, see Table 8-2 Icons on Real Fixes.

lcon	Description			
	Repair case includes text and images.			
	Repair case is accompanied with a video for explaining vehicle principles and diagnostic troubles.			
	Vehicle identification, including brand and model.			
6 78	The number of views for each repair case.			
1	Tap this icon if you find the repair case helpful.			
4 0	Tap this icon if you find the repair case not helpful.			

Table 8-2 Icons on Real Fixes

The **Select Vehicle** button in the upper left half allows you to choose the vehicle model and search for relevant repair information.

> To Search for a real fix

1. Tap the blue **Select Vehicle** button on the left.

- 2. Select Year of the vehicle from the list.
- 3. Select *Brand* of the vehicle from the list.
- 4. Select *Model* of the vehicle from the list.
- 5. Select *Engine* of the vehicle from the list.
- 6. After all selections have been done, the system will match the identified vehicle with a list of repair case entries.
- 7. Press one entry of them and enter the real fix page with diagnostic description in detail (Figure 8-5).

Real Fixes in Detail

		a ser a s	arking runsdon in	wheen we a
2014 BMW 740i N55				
Contractions of the Party Name and San Party	marker Reporter Wester Sector	the second block		Country Marylly Bo to the State In
Auriliantile Vehicles				
Apprendic Vermines				
2017 2019	10		2014 DAIN 740	
2013 84/0 7	ini .		2013 Bailet Asta	
Symptoms				
1. The sources respective arms in	1511011			
DIC.	ng misasin najari			
 ands use wheel speed served (Vani): 	io ingluo			
 ABBATEN - Devinence Stellarity Control (2) 	SEX Whitting ID an extension	Teal Loss spec		
Trouble Area				
V FMP.				
With service				
1 usy control unit				
E. EVIC (MLR				
a Animus (Dec) Ferros				
Troubleshooting				
normal before the receiv Ical Fixes • Hoppers the total art these and norm	ago agait failt fan trouwer.			
Team of Aake Actionofele Service (Manual	Expants	_		
Team of Adel A Bonotele Service (Manuel OBM Test	Esperita			
 Team of Addel A domotele Service (Manual) ODM Test parking taske 	Esperin			
Them of Add A bandole Served Manual ODN Test Charles Activating unit and EMP conte	Experts			
	of Jords	2000-1 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	Extantition Transportation Transportation Mined 24 (doi:10.1011/11) Mined 24 (doi:10.1011/11) Mined 24 (doi:10.1011/11)	
	of left	2001 21 2 4 2	Columnation Transporting resolution Advanced and account of the Advanced and account of the Advanced and account of the	
	Segurity of level Segif	2001 2 4 4	Eddamstein Transporter verslasse Wend Jacks, user (40) Wend Jacks, user (40)	
	egante of left	2001- 22 4 8	Childrenson Childrenson Ohmed Jacks, nach 147 Mitterf an deg nach 147	
 Toaru of Adol A domatolis Served? Manuel Ob Tagi Ob Tagi Disking laide Addraafig unit and SMF control 	eganda en initi entit notiti		Existingtion Transport (Voidea Other a stack, can stad)	
 Tom of Add A bandok Served Manuel Obv Test Obv Test Obv Test Obv Test Address und add Manuel Manuel Manuel Obv Test Address und add Manuel Manuel Manuel Obv Test Address und add Manuel Manuel Manuel Obv Test Address und address of Address Addre	erganda; erganda; erganda; erganda;		Estambol Transport y vision Other a line (son right)	
 Trans of Adde A Associate's Serveral Associate Associate	erganda erganda ergan regen		Estatemente estatemente obrevi la degi suari tato obrevi la degi suari tato	
 Trave of Adde A Accorde-Serveral Accordence Serveral Acc	erganda er indi andi andi andi andi andi andi andi		Enderstann Enderstann Others I alug: som staff Others I alug: som staff Others I alug: som staff	

Figure 8-5 Sample Real Fixes Page 2

This page comprises a series of diagnostic operations, from finding vehicle faults, locating errors, to providing suggested solutions. It is based on a great deal of real repair cases with relevant graphs and videos, to present a complete maintenance database for the reference of MaxiSys MS909 users.

Each repair case includes nine main parts:

1. **Applicable Vehicles** – matches different types of vehicles that this repair case analysis can be applicable to.

- Symptoms points out the fault symptoms of the vehicle, which provides a reference to confirm the vehicle problems.
- DTC matches relevant fault codes for further resolving. This is based on a large DTC database commonly used worldwide.
- Trouble Area indicates the exact position of the vehicle problems. This part helps to locate the vehicle problems accurately.

Care ID: MadFigN0_07_2000_E0
2016 Nissan MURANO
2016 Nissan ROGUE
2016 Nissan SENTRA
0

Figure 8-6 Sample Trouble Area Page

5. Troubleshooting -illustrates the detailed diagnostic operations in a vivid format.



Figure 8-7 Sample Troubleshooting Page 1

Troubleshooting is usually presented as text. However, instructional videos are sometimes provided.



Figure 8-8 Sample Troubleshooting Page 2

- Real Fixes displays suggested vehicle repairs. Purchase diagnostic devices directly by tapping associated link and access the Autel website.
- Author identifies the author of the professional repair case. Some of them are authenticated technicians, while most are from the team of Autel Automobile Service Experts with long-term diagnostic experience and technical skills.
- 8. Manual presents relevant operations on components during the diagnosis.
- 9. **Recommended cases** associates other repair cases that share similar faults or keywords with this case.



Figure 8-9 Sample Recommended Cases Page

For some vehicles repair case, a TSB file is added for further analysis, shown as below.



Figure 8-10 TSB Page

Quick search: To search for relevant vehicle symptoms and repair issues, use the Search box in the upper right corner of the Real Fixes section. Input keywords and tap the Search button, and the system will match all relevant entries for reference. The more keywords, the more precise the matching results.

8.3.3 Academy

The third section of MaxiFix is Academy, a platform for technicians to enrich their knowledge and improve operating skills. Academy contains two main parts, Featured Videos and Query Tools.



Figure 8-11 Sample Academy Page

Featured Videos – are intended to help the technicians, namely the MaxiSys MS909 users, to improve their diagnostics skills and enhance their overall vehicle repair and servicing knowledge.

1. **Tool Tips**: Videos on Tool Tips present knowledge of diagnostic tools as well as operations in diagnostic process.

2. **Skill Enhancement**: Videos on Skill Enhancement are shot to show diagnostic procedures in real maintenance scenes and share expertise of senior technicians.

3. **Vehicle Theory**: Videos on Vehicle Theory are recorded to impart vehicle theories or principles by experts in vehicle structure and maintenance.

Query Tools – provides large volumes of vehicle data for quick query. The Accumulator Query is for vehicle battery searching, while the Tire Query is for tire information searching.

- > To run a query (take Tire Query for example)
 - 1. Tap the **Tire Query** icon to enter the Select Vehicle page.
 - 2. Tap the Select Vehicle to select from the four rows of menus that appear.

- 3. Select Year, Brand, Model, and Engine.
- 4. After all selections have been done, the corresponding tire specifications will be displayed.

8.3.4 Integral Mall

The Integral Mall is a new menu of MaxiFix, which is designed for enhancing interaction and communication between technicians and Autel support.



Figure 8-12 Sample Integral Mall Page

In the Integral mall, the reward coins can be used as coupons for exchanging specific products or devices. If you are keen on some of them, just make an order for the exchange with the required number of coins. You will get a reduction of payment with the coins.

> To make an order (take MaixiTPMS TS601 for example)

- 1. Enter the Integral Mall, and you will see the products priced in reward coins.
- 2. In the product list, tap MaixiTPMS TS601 and enter the **Product Detail** page.

3. Read the information about the main functions of the product, pay attention to the number of coins needed for exchange, and then choose the quantity



of exchange. Product pictures are showcased in the carousel, below which there are two buttons. **Detailed Introduction** describes the product characteristics, while **Specification Parameter** explains data for product configuration.

Figure 8-13 Sample Product Detail Page

- 4. Tap the **Exchange** button in orange to enter the Exchange Confirmation page
- 5. Check the order details carefully and tap the **Confirm** button in the upper right corner. The exchange is completed when the Exchange Success notice appears.
- 6. Tap **Done** to complete the process.

⊘ NOTE

For more information about the orders you have made, please switch to the Integral Mall page, and tap **Order Records**, you will see all the orders you have made in Integral Mall.
9 Data Manager

The Data Manager application allows you to store, print, and review the saved files, manage the workshop information, customer information records and keep test vehicle records.

Selecting the Data Manager application opens the file system menu.



Figure 9-1 Data Manager

The table below describes each of the functional buttons in the Data Manager application.

Name	Button	Description	
Vehicle History		Tap to view the diagnostic records.	
Workshop Information	Ê	Tap to view or edit the workshop information.	
Customer	2	Tap to view or add a new customer.	
Image	E	Tap to view the screenshots.	

Table 9-1 Buttons in Data Manager

Name	Button	Description			
PDF		Tap to view the diagnostic reports.			
Review Data		Tap to view the recorded data.			
Uninstall Apps	B	Tap to uninstall applications.			
Data Logging	E	Tap to view communications with Autel support service and ECU information of the test vehicle. The saved data can be reported and sent to the technical center via the Internet.			

9.1 Vehicle History

This function stores records of test vehicle history, including vehicle information and the retrieved DTCs from previous diagnostic sessions. Test information is summarized and displays in an easy-to-read table listing. The Vehicle History also provides direct access to the previously tested vehicle and allows you to directly restart a diagnostic session without needing to perform auto or manual vehicle selection.

	16 Re	eords 🙆
	D73 Count 2019-07-31 03 39:57	6
	D773,Count 2019/07/31 E300008	1 6
	0772.Count: 2019-07-01 02:59-40	6
	0703/25000 2010/07/07/07/02/2010	1 6
	0113-00001 2019-07-31 (05:54-11	* 6
	DTTs Count 9919 974 81 82 Baltic	1 8
	12102 Count. 2019-07-01 02:36:38	1 6
	D=1250anL 2019/01/31/223100	1 8
	D/C.Count	6
		Prit Cauni 2019/92/11/2008/7 Dit Cauni 2019/92/11/2008/7 Dit Cauni 2019/92/11/2008/ 2019/92/11/2008/ 010/02/01 2019/92/11/2008/ 010/02/01 010/2008 000000000000000000000000000000000

Figure 9-2 Vehicle Records

- 1. Top navigation bar.
- 2. Main section displays all the vehicle records.
- > To activate a test session for the recorded vehicle

- 1. Tap Data Manager on the MaxiSys main screen.
- Select Vehicle History. In the top navigation bar, choose Diagnostics or Service to view diagnostic records or service records.
- 3. Tap Diagnostics at the bottom of the thumbnail of a vehicle record. Or,
- 4. Tap a vehicle thumbnail to select record.
- 5. A History Test record window displays. Review the recorded information of the test vehicle, and tap the Diagnostics button in the upper right corner to continue diagnostics.
- The Diagnostics screen of the vehicle displays and a new diagnostic session is activated, see Diagnostics for detailed instructions on vehicle diagnostic operations.

Historical Test

The Historical Test record of the tested vehicle is a detailed data form, which includes general information of the vehicle such as vehicle year, make and model and the diagnostic trouble codes retrieved from the previous test sessions. Technician-added service notes will display if present.

				View PDF
Title:	Mercedes-Benz LD Vaneo			
- Isan are				🖷 Print
Year		VIN		🖾 Email
Make	Mercedes-Benz LD	License		册 Delete
Model	Vaneo	Odometer Mileage		
Sub model	Gasoline engine	Color		
Engine		Status	Not started	
Technician				
Fechnician Notes:				
				-

Figure 9-3 Historical Test

- > To edit historical test records
 - 1. Tap **Data Manager** in the MaxiSys main screen.
 - 2. Select Vehicle History.
 - 3. Select the test record to be edited.
 - 4. Tap **Edit** in the upper right corner of the screen to start editing.

- 5. Tap an item before inputting information or attaching files or images to it.
- 6. Tap **Add to Customer** to correlate the test record to an existing customer account, or add a new account to be correlated with the test record. See 9.3 Customer on page 109 for more information.
- 7. Tap **Done** to save the updated record, or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.

🖉 NOTE

The vehicle VIN, license number and customer account are correlated by default. Vehicle records will automatically be correlated using this vehicle and customer identification.

9.2 Workshop Information

Workshop Information allows you to input, edit, and save shop name, address, phone number and other information which displays as the header of printed vehicle diagnostic reports and other test files.

*	2	Workshop information	
Set shop logo		-Set page fooser logo	9
Shop name	1	Tel	
State		Fax	
Слу		Gmail	
Zip codo			
Andreas			
Managerisanse		Monageritito	
Wettste			
Slogan			
Remark			

Figure 9-4 Workshop Information

- > To edit the workshop information
 - 1. Tap Data Manager in the MaxiSys Main Screen.
 - 2. Select Workshop Information.
 - 3. Tap each field to input the corresponding information.
 - 4. Tap **Done** to save the updated workshop information, or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.

9.3 Customer

The Customer function allows you to create and edit customer accounts. It helps you to save and organize all customer accounts correlated with the test vehicle records.

> To create a customer account

- 1. Tap the Data Manager application in the MaxiSys main screen.
- 2. Select **Customer** and tap the **Add Customer** button in the upper left corner of the page that appears.
- 3. Fill out the fields labelled with an asterisk.
- 4. For customers with more than one vehicle for service, tap **Add New Vehicle Information**. To delete the added vehicle information, tap the ³ button.
- 5. Tap **OK** in the upper right corner of the screen to save the customer information, or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.

> To edit or delete a customer account

- 1. In the **Customer** page, select a customer account to view the customer information.
- 2. Tap the Edit icon in the upper right corner to edit the customer information.
- 3. Tap **Complete** in the upper right corner after you finish the editing, or tap the **Delete** button to the opposite to delete the customer information.

9.4 Image

The Image section keeps all the screenshots.

Tel .	Image	٩
- P		
Scenedard 2019/00/11 00490/11 pag	Convertine 2010/00/02/024841 and	Sovertier, 2014Gad Localda Joe
	Science (1979/1522-224.20)	Schwerkel, Lin Perf2522, (219 proj
		an an an Anna Cràinnean Eiltean
Sec. 21/1W/25-22/2/15.04	Sciences 4, 70 (1997) 75527700 arry	Sammer (20) (47/25) (Service)
	1012	

Figure 9-5 Image

- 1. Toolbar Buttons used to edit, print or delete the images. The following table introduces each button in detail.
- 2. Main Section showcases the images.

Name	Button	Description
Back	ŧ	Return to the previous screen.
Search	QSearch	Locate an image by vehicle name, test path, file name or file info.
Edit		Tap to select images to be deleted, emailed or printed.
Info		Tap to view the image info.
Print		Tap to email or print the selected image.
Delete		Tap to delete the selected image.

Table 9-2 Toolbar Buttons Description

> To edit image information

- 1. Select Data Manager from the MaxiSys Main Screen.
- 2. Select **Image** and tap an image to display it in full screen.
- 3. Tap the **Info** icon in the upper right corner to open a window displaying the image information.
- 4. Tap **Edit** to edit the file name and file information.
- 5. Tap **Done** to save the information and exit, or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.

> To delete the images

- 1. In the **Image** page, tap the **Edit** icon in the upper right corner. A check box appears at the foot of each thumbnail.
- 2. Select the images to be deleted by tapping the thumbnails. Thumbnails selected display a check mark in the check box.
- 3. Tap the **Delete** button, and then **Delete Selected**, or tap **Delete all** to delete all images.

9.5 PDF

The PDF section displays all the PDF files stored in the tablet. You can view or edit the PDF files using Adobe Reader. For more information, see Adobe Reader documentation.

The Review Data function allows you to playback frames of live data.



Figure 9-7 Live Data Frames

- 1. Main Section displays the live data frames.
- 2. Toolbar allows you to manipulate data playback.

9.7 Uninstall Apps

This section allows you to manage the diagnostics installed on the MaxiSys tablet.

- > To delete the images
- 1. Tap Uninstall Apps to enter the diagnostics page.

2. Tap the diagnostics you want to uninstall, and the selected items will display a blue check mark.

3. Tap the **Delete** icon in the upper right corner of the screen.

9.8 Data Logging

The Data Logging section allows you to launch the Support platform directly to view all data loggings in the diagnostic system. For more information, see **14.5 Data** Logging on Page 119.

10 Settings

Access the Settings menu to adjust default setting and view information about the MaxiSys system. The following options are available for the MaxiSys system settings:

- Unit
- Language
- Printing settings
- Scan report
- Notification center
- Auto update
- ADAS registration
- Vehicle list
- System settings
- About

10.1 Operations

This section describes how to alter the system settings.

10.1.1 Unit

This option allows you to change the measurement unit for the diagnostic system.

- > To change the unit
 - 1. Tap the **Settings** application in the main screen.
 - 2. Select **Unit** from the left navigation pane.
 - 3. Select the appropriate measurement unit, Metric or Imperial. A check mark displays to the right of the selected unit.

10.1.2 Language

This option allows you to change the MaxiSys system language.

> To change the system language

1. Tap the **Settings** application in the main screen.

- 2. Select Language from the left navigation pane.
- 3. Select the appropriate language. A check mark displays to the right of the selected language.

10.1.3 Printing Settings

This option allows you to print from the tablet to a network printer via a computer.

> To connect to the printer

- 1. Tap the **Settings** application in the main screen.
- 2. Select **Printing settings** from the left navigation pane.
- 3. Tap **Print via Network** to activate the printing function, which enables the device to send files to the printer through Wi-Fi or ethernet connection.

> To install the MaxiSys printer driver

- Download Maxi PC Suite from <u>www.autel.com</u> > Supports & Updates > Firmware & Downloads > Update Client, and install it to a Windows-based PC.
- 2. Double-click on Setup.exe.
- 3. Select an installation language to load the wizard.
- 4. Follow the instructions on the screen and click on Next to continue.
- 5. Click the **Install** button and the printer driver will be installed.
- 6. Click the **Finish** button to complete the installation.

The MaxiSys printer runs automatically after the installation.

This section describes how to receive and print files from the MaxiSys tablet through PC:

> To perform printing through the computer

- 1. Make sure the tablet is connected to the computer network, via Wi-Fi or LAN.
- 2. Run the MaxiSys Printer program on the computer.
- 3. Click on Test Print to check whether the printer works properly.
- 4. Tap the **Print** button in the tablet toolbar. A test document will be sent to the computer.
 - If **Auto Print** is selected, the MaxiSys printer will automatically print the received document.
 - Otherwise, click the **Open PDF File** button to view files. Select the file(s) to be printed and click **Print**.

NOTE

Make sure the computer installed with the Printing Services program is connected to a printer.

10.1.4 Notification Center

This option allows you to turn the Notification Center function on or off. The Notification Center function configures the MaxiSys tablet to receive regular online messages from the server for system update notifications or other service information via the Internet. It is recommended that the Notification setting be on at all times so as not to miss updates or important service messages. Internet access is required for receiving online messages.

- > To enable the Notification Center function
 - 1. Tap **Settings** in the main screen.
 - 2. Select Notification center from the left navigation pane.
 - 3. Toggle on the notification center in the main section of the screen. The toggle button turns from grey to blue.

When the notification center is turned on, newly received notifications will display on the main screen. Press the message bar and drag it down to display the received messages.

Tap a specific message to launch the corresponding application. For example, if you tap an Update notification, the Update application will be launched.

10.1.5 Auto Update

This option allows you to preset a time to update the software. There are three update options: OS Update, MaxiSys Update and Vehicle Update.

Toggle on the update option you prefer. The button displays blue if Autel Update is enabled and displays gray if disabled. Set the time of the day for updating. The selected software will be automatically updated at the specific time.

10.1.6 ADAS Registration

> To active MaxiSys ADAS Calibration

1. Confirm that updates for the registered MaxiSys tablet are available.

- 2. Select **Settings** from the main screen.
- 3. Click on ADAS Binding.
- 4. Scan the QR code on the ADAS frame, or manually input its serial number.
- 5. Enter the verification code from the ADAS Calibration Card.
- 6. The system will reset and the main screen will display once registration has been completed.

10.1.7 Vehicle List

This option allows you to sort the vehicles either by alphabetic order or by frequency of use.

> To adjust the vehicle list setting

- 1. Tap the **Settings** application on the MaxiSys main screen.
- 2. Select Vehicle list from the left navigation pane.
- 3. Select a sorting method. A check mark will display to the right of the selected method.

10.1.8 System Settings

This function provides direct access to the Android system settings interface, where you can adjust settings such as network, sound and display, system security, and check information about the Android system. Refer to Android documentation for more information.

10.1.9 About

The About function provides information of the MaxiSys diagnostic device, including the product name, version, hardware, and serial number.

> To check the MaxiSys product information

- 1. Tap the **Settings** application in the main screen.
- 2. Select **About** from the left navigation pane. The above product information displays on the right side.

11 Update

This section describes how to download and install updates to the MaxiSys Diagnostic System firmware using the Update application to increase MaxiSys capabilities.

MaxiSys MS909 automatically searches for available updates when it is connected to the Internet. A notification displays when an update is available, if the Notifications function is enabled in Settings. For more information, see 10.1.4 Notification Center on page 115).

	Update All	Show Recent	Update		CQ
lixuelan@oute	itech.net V19600	000033 AL609			D:0KB/s 0/0
FORD	AUFo	2/12/2019 ind, EUFORD, 福特	1001 et 10 2018		
0	EURO AURO	HR) ud		0	\sim
HOLDE	Holde	78/38/2010 90			(\bullet)
C	Holdes			0	\cup
	Mahir	7/1//2010 ndra			(\bullet)
MAHING	Matrice	ira		0	0
-	V7.00	6/14/2018			0
1	Maru	ti suzuki, 钤木			
SUZUN	Maru Vitara, 2. Shike	55所作患瘤蓝至2018年較。 fi sucki 1、自次发行,可支持Wegon Equator,Alto等40款作型。 何合於当我到年系统的状态和课程功能	H. Swift, SW4, Lana, Landy C26, Grand 2,	0	\odot
0	W610	6/22/2016 VI 3M			\bigcirc
*		Ø 0	🕅 🕅 VC4 🖗		奈 宏 20% 上 1:46

Figure 0-1 Update

- 1. Navigation and Controls
 - Home Button return to the MaxiSys main screen
 - Update All download and install all available updates
 - Show Recent display the recent updates
 - Search Bar search for specific updates, for example, by make
- 2. Status Bar
 - Left Side displays the device model and serial number
 - Right Side displays the update progress
- 3. Main Section
 - Left Column displays vehicle brands and version information of the update
 - Middle Column contains a brief introduction to the new version, as shown in
 - Right Column displays the operation button which varies according to the

specific update status

> To update the firmware

1. Power up the tablet, and ensure that it is connected to a power source and has a steady Internet connection.

2. Tap the **Update** application button from the MaxiSys Job Menu; or tap the update notification message when received. The Update application screen displays.

3. Check all available updates:

- If you decide to update all the items, tap the **Update All** button.
- If you only want to update some individual items, tap the **Update** button on the right column of the specific item. This option is highly recommended to ensure updates are performed correctly, especially if unsure of the speed and stability of your shops Internet connection.

4. Tap the **Pause** button to suspend the updating process. Tap **Continue** to resume the update and the process will continue from the pause point.

5. When the updating process is completed, the firmware will be installed automatically. The new version will replace the older version.

12 VCI Manager

VCI Manager is for connecting the MaxiSys MS909 tablet with a VCI device through Wi-Fi or Bluetooth. This application allows you to pair the tablet with the VCI device and to check the communication status.

+		VCI Manager	Refresh
😤 WI-FI BT BT	Connected	Devices	
Update	Not connected	VCI WIFI R Maxi-CFJU80901053 Maxi-CFJU8abbc008 R Maxi-CGJM19072266	Connected Not connected Not connected
• •		Tap to connect or disconnect	≈ ≅144

Figure 12-1 VCI Manager

- 1. **Connection Mode** three connection modes are available. The connection state displays adjacent to each mode.
 - Wi-Fi Connection when connected to a wireless device, the connection state is Connected, otherwise it is Not Connected.
 - BT Pairing when paired to a wireless device, the connection state is Connected; otherwise it is Not Connected.
 - Update updates VCI software via the MaxiSys tablet using USB connection.
- 2. Settings this section allows you to manage and set up network connection.
 - Wi-Fi Setting searches for and displays the type and partial serial number of all devices available for Wi-Fi connection.
 - BT Setting searches for and displays the type and partial serial number of devices available for BT pairing. Tap a device to start pairing. The BT status icon to the left of the device name indicates the strength of the received signal.
 - Ethernet Setting allows you to perform network configuration.

12.1 Wi-Fi Connection

With Wi-Fi connection to the VCI device, you can work with MaxiSys MS909 somewhere pleasant rather than the hot garage, while performing diagnostic operations as smoothly as beside the vehicle. The MaxiSys tablet can be operated up to 100 meters away from the VCI device when connected to the vehicle.

+		VCI Manager	Refresh
🛜 Wi-Fi	Connected		
т вт	Not connected	((((u@n))))	
Update	Not connected	Devices	
		VCI WIFI	ON O
		Raxi-CFJU80901053	Connected
		Raxi-CFJUaabbc008	Not connected
		Raxi-CGJM19072266	Not connected
		Tap to connect or disconnec	t
			······································

Figure 0-2 Wi-Fi Connection

> To connect the VCI device with the tablet via Wi-Fi

- 1. Connect the 26-pin end of the data cable to the VCI device.
- Connect the 9-pin end of the data cable to the vehicle data link connector (DLC).
- 3. Tap VCI Manager to enter the VCI Manager page.
- 4. Toggle on the Wi-Fi function. Tap **Refresh** at the top right corner. The tablet starts to search for available devices.
- 5. Tap the target device for connection.
- 6. When connection succeeds, the connection status is shown as Connected.
- 7. Wait a few seconds for the VCI button at the bottom of the screen to assume the green Wi-Fi icon.
- 8. To disconnect the VCI device, tap its name in the VCI Wi-Fi list.

12.2 BT Pairing

The VCI device must be either connected to a vehicle or to a power source before the synchronization procedure.

*		VCI Manager	Stop
Wi-Fi	Not connected		
вт	Not connected		YG
Update	Not connected	Devices	Scanning
		Bluetooth	ON
		(100) Maxi-CFJE00009165	Not connected
		😡 Maxi-FJW000000169	Not connected
		@ Maxi-FJW000000146	Not connected
		001 Maxi-CMJW00000038	Not connecter
		ON AP-CAPHJAC01322	Not connected
		Tap to connect or discon	inect
	G		

Figure 0-2 BT Pairing

> To pair the VCI device with the tablet

- 1. Connect the 26-pin end of the data cable to the VCI device.
- 2. Connect the 9-pin end of the data cable to the vehicle DLC.
- 3. Tap VCI Manager to enter the VCI Manager page.
- 4. Select **BT** from the connection mode list.
- 5. Toggle on the Bluetooth function. Tap **Scan** in the upper right corner. The device starts to search for available BT devices.
- 6. Tap the target device for connection.
- 7. When connection succeeds, the connection status is shown as Connected.
- 8. Wait a few seconds for the VCI button at the bottom of the screen to assume the green BT icon.
- 9. To disconnect the VCI device, tap its name in the VCI Wi-Fi list.

A VCI device can be paired to only one tablet at a time and cannot be discovered by other tablets once it is already paired.

12.3 Update

The Update module provides the latest update for the MaxiSys MS909 tablet. Before updating the VCI software, make sure the tablet network is stable.



Figure 0-3 VCI Update

- > To update the VCI software
 - 1. Connect the VCI device to the tablet via USB.
 - 2. Tap VCI Manager to enter the VCI Manager page.
 - 3. Select Update from the connection mode list.
 - 4. The current version and the latest version of the VCI software are displayed. Tap **Update Now** to update the VCI software.

13 ADAS

Advanced Driver Assistance Systems (ADAS) are electronic systems that aid a driver either through passive alerts or active control of the vehicle for safety and better driving.

Safety features are designed to avoid collisions and accidents by offering technologies that alert the driver to potential problems, or to avoid collisions by implementing safeguards and taking over control of the vehicle. Adaptive features may automate lighting, provide adaptive cruise control and collision avoidance, pedestrian crash avoidance mitigation (PCAM), incorporate satnav/traffic warnings, alert driver to other cars or dangers, lane departure warning system, automatic lane centering, show what is in blind spots, or connect to smartphones for navigation instructions.

Autel ADAS Calibration Tool features the following highlights to achieve flexible, precise and complete ADAS calibration.

- 1. Covers vehicle makes, including Benz, BMW, Audi, VW, Porsche, Infiniti, Lexus, GM, Ford, Volvo, Toyota, Nissan, Honda, Hyundai, and Kia.
- Supports the calibration of multiple driver assistant systems, including Adaptive. Cruise Control (ACC), Night Vision System (NVS), Lane Departure Warning (LDW), Blind Spot Detection (BSD), Around View Monitoring (AVM), Rear Collision Warning (RCW) and Heads-up Displays (HUD).
- 3. Offers graphic illustrations and step-by-step instructions.
- 4. Provides demos to guide the technician through the calibration.



Figure 13-1 Autel ADAS Calibration

14 Support

The Support application is connected to Autel service channel and online communities, which allow you to submit complaints or send help requests for quick and effective service and support.

14.1 Product Registration

To access the Support platform to obtain updates and other services, you need to register your MaxiSys MS909 the first time you use it.

> To register the diagnostic device

- 1. Go to http://pro.autel.com.
- 2. Sign in with your Autel account ID and password.
- 3. If you do not have an Autel account, click on the **Create Autel ID** button on the left side to create an ID.
- 4. Enter the required information in the input fields, and click on the **Get Verification Code** button for email verification.
- Input the verification code sent to the registered email address. Read through the Autel Terms and Conditions before clicking on Agree and Create Autel ID. The product registration page displays.
- 6. Select your product model, enter the product serial number and password in the About section of Settings, and click on **Submit** to complete the registration procedure.

14.2 Application Interface

The Support interface consists of the following parts:

- My Account contains Personal Info, Update Info and Service Info
- Complaint allows you to lodge a complaint and view previous complaints
- Data Logging records communications with Autel support service
- Training provides linkage to Autel online videos
- FAQ provides answers to frequently asked questions about Autel online membership and shopping and payment procedures

				🙎 lixuələngə	anekechine
My Account	Personal Info	Update Info	Service Info		
	User information				
Complaint	Autel ID	lixuelan@autelt	ech.net		
Data Lodaina	Real name:	li xuelan			
	Country/District	中国			
> Training	Town/City:				
	Company/Institute:				
6 FAQ	Address:				
	Post code:				
	Device information				
	Product serial number:	V19G00000033	1		
	Registration time	26/07/2019			
	Expired time:	26/10/2028			
	Warranty period:	26/07/2019 - 20	5/07/2020		

Figure 0-1 Application Interface

14.3 My Account

14.3.1 Personal Info

- User information displays details of your Autel account, such as Autel ID, name, address and post code.
- Device information displays information of the registered product, including serial number, registration date, expiration date, and warranty period.

14.3.2 Update Info

The Update Info tab page displays the software update history, including the product serial number, software version or name, and the update time.

14.3.3 Service Info

The Service Info tab page displays the service history of the product, which contains details such as the fault type, components replaced, and system updates.

14.4 Complaint

The Complaint section allows you to lodge a complaint and view previous complaints.

14.4.1 Screen Layout

Complaint List

The list displays complaints of various subjects, along with the ticket ID, user account, date, and complaint status.

There are two kinds of case status:

- Open indicates the complaint case has been started but not completed
- Closed indicates the complaint case has been processed and completed

> To lodge a complaint

- 1. Tap **Complaint** in the left navigation pane.
- 2. Tap New Issue in the upper right corner. A list of service channels displays.
- Select the target service channel and tap Next to fill out the standard complaint form. To settle the complaint more efficiently, we recommend you to complete the form in detail. You can also attach images or PDF files to the form.
- 4. Set a processing time in the last section according to the urgency of the case.
- 5. Tap **Submit** to send the completed form to Autel online service. The submitted complaints will be properly processed and replied soon.

14.5 Data Logging

The Data Logging section records communications with Autel support service, who are obliged to process the submitted reports and feedback within 48 hours. You can keep in touch with Autel support service until the problem is solved.

> To make a reply in a Data Logging session

- 1. Tap the **Feedback** tab to view the submitted data loggings.
- 2. Select the latest message from Autel support service.
- 3. Tap the input field at the bottom of the screen, and enter your reply. Or tap the Audio button to record a voice message, or tap the camera button to take a screenshot.
- 4. Tap **Send** to send your reply to Support.

14.6 Training

The Training section provides linkage to Autel online videos. Select a video channel by language to watch available Autel online tutorial videos on such topics as product usage and vehicle diagnostics.

15 Remote Desktop

Remote Desktop is imbedded with the TeamViewer QuickSupport software. You can use it to get remote support from the Autel support center or your colleagues or friends, by allowing them to control your MaxiSys tablet from their PC.

15.1 Operations

If you liken a TeamViewer communication to a phone call, a TeamViewer ID would be the number of a phone user. Computers and mobile devices that run TeamViewer are identified by a globally unique ID, which is generated the first time the device runs TeamViewer. The ID is created based on the hardware characteristics and remains unchanged.

Make sure the tablet is connected to the Internet before launching Remote Desktop, so that the tablet can receive remote support from a third party.



Figure 15-1 Remote Desktop

> To receive remote support from a partner

- 1. Tap the **Remote Desktop** icon to open the TeamViewer interface and generate the device ID.
- 2. The PC on the control end must be installed with the Remote Control software through which to control your tablet.
- 3. Give your TeamViewer ID to the controller, who will send back a request for remote control.
- 4. Tap Allow to accept the request, or Deny to reject.

16 Quick Link

Quick Link provides convenient access to Autel official website as well as many other well-known sites in automotive service, which offers abundant information and resources, such as technical help, knowledge bases, forums, training and expert consultations.

AUTEL	ALLDATA	OBD WIKI	MAYNESPRO
AUTEL	ALLDATA	OBD wiki	HaynesPro
IDENTIFIX	MITCHELL1	NASTE	TST
IDENTIFIX	Mitchelin	NASTE	TST
	ETI	IATN	
autodata	eli	IATN	

Figure 16-1 Quick Link

> To open a quick link

- 1. Tap **Quick Link** to open the Quick Link interface.
- 2. Select a website. The selected website is opened in Chrome.

17 MaxiViewer

MaxiViewer allows you to search for functions supported by our tools and the version information. There are two ways of searching, either by vehicle or by function.

> To search by vehicle

- 1. Tap the **MaxiViewer** icon.
- 2. Select the tablet model from the drop-down list in the upper left corner.
- 3. Select the vehicle brand, model, and year.

axiSys MSS T Abarth/CC-Cinc	pie/Yeu		
@2131230747	@2131230748	@21312	80749
#	All	All	
(GM) Others	500	2007	
٨	GRANDE PUNTO		
Abami	PUNTO EVO		
Acura	GC-Cinquesento		
Alfà	FF-500		
Alpheon			
AstonMartin			

Figure 17-1 Function Viewer Screen 1

4. All the functions and sub-functions supported by the tablet for the selected model are displayed.

Q 10			Function	-				
oacity 🔻	•	System		Yea 🔻	Abarth/GRANDE PU/	MaxiSys MSs		
Yourgonn		Suprimentary	Rootten	Copacity (System	//Bar		
Above rth_V8.10		1	Active test	1.4 TURBO 16V	Bosch ABS 8 ESP (EP)	1		
Above rth_V8.10		T	ECU information	1.4 TURBO 16V	Bosch ABS 8 ESP (EP)	1		
Above rth_V8.10		7	Erase codes	1.4 TURBO 16V	Bosch ABS 8 ESP (EP)	1		
Above rth_V8.10		1	Live data	1.4 TURBO 16V	Bosch ABS 8 ESP (EP)	1		
Above rth_V8.10		r	Read codes	1.4 TURBO 16V	Bosch ABS 8 ESP (EP)	1		
Above rth_V8.10	sor	Longit. Acc. Sense calibration	Special function	1.4 TURBO 16V	Bosch ABS 8 ESP (EP)	1		
Above rth_V8.10		Static test	Special function	1.4 TURBO 16V	Bosch ABS 8 ESP (EP)	1		

Figure 17-2 MaxiViewer

> To search by function

- 1. Tap the MaxiViewer icon.
- 2. Select the tablet model from the drop-down list in the upper left corner.
- 3. Enter the function you want to search by in the top right search box. All vehicles supported with the function will be listed, along with their brand, model, year, system, sub system, function, sub-function, and version.

🖉 ΝΟΤΕ

Fuzzy search is supported. You can type in part of the function keywords to search for vehicles that this function supports.

18 MaxiVideo

MaxiVideo enables you to examine areas blocked from sight on Maxisys MS909 when connected to a digital inspection camera. You can record images and videos of the inspected items in a safe and convenient way.

\Lambda WARNING

Follow the instructions below to prevent tool damage and reduce the risk of injury from electric shock, entanglement and other causes.

- Do not place the imager head in anything or anywhere that may contain electric charge or moving parts, which increases the risk of electric shock or entanglement injuries.
- Do not use the imager head to clear clogged areas.
- When inspection is completed, withdraw the imager head carefully from the inspected area.
- The imager head cable is waterproof to a depth of 3m (10'). Going deeper may induce leakage into the imager head cable and cause electric shock or tool damage.
- The working temperature of the imager head is between 32 °F (0 °C) and 113 °F (45 °C).

Check-Ups:

- ✓ FOR AUTOMOBILES: Ensure the automobile is not running during inspection to avoid damage from hot metal and liquid under the hood. Do not get oil or gasoline on the imager head.
- ✓ FOR PIPES: If you suspect that a metal pipe may carry electric charge, have a qualified electrician to check the pipe before inspecting it.
- ✓ FOR WALLS: Before you inspect the inside of a wall with the imager head, turn off the circuit breaker to the house.
- ✓ WORK AREA: Ensure the work area has sufficient light.

18.1 Accessories

The Digital Inspection Camera can be purchased along with the standard MaxiSys tool kit.

18.1.1 Digital Inspection Camera



Figure 18-1 Digital Inspection Camera

- 1. Removable Imager Head Cable features two sizes (8.5 mm and 5.5 mm) of imager head for your choice
- 2. Handgrip ergonomically designed handle for comfortable grip and agile operation
- 3. USB Cable connects the imager head cable to the MaxiSys tablet

18.1.2 Imager Head Accessories



Figure 18-2 8.5mm Imager Head Accessories

- 1. Magnet for picking up small metal objects such as dropped rings or screws
- 2. Hook for unclogging obstacles and pulling out wires from pipes
- 3. Mirror for reflecting light from awkward corners



Figure 18-3 5.5mm Imager Head Accessories

- 1. Mirror for reflecting light from awkward corners
- 2. Magnet for picking up small metal objects such as dropped rings or screws

18.1.3 Accessory Assembly

18.1.3.1 For 8.5mm Imager Head

The three accessories, including the magnet, hook, and mirror, can be attached to the imager head in the same manner described below:

1. Point the accessory to the imager head in the right direction.





2. Cap and fix the accessory over the imager head.

18.1.3.2 For 5.5mm Imager Head

The two accessories, including the magnet and mirror, can be attached to the imager head in the same manner described below:

1. Point the accessory to the imager head in the right direction.



2. Cap and screw the accessory onto the imager head.



18.1.4 Technical Specifications

Table 18-1 Specifications

Item	Description				
Optimal Viewing Distance	1" to 14" (2.54cm to 35.56cm) fo 8.5mm-diameter imager head				
	3/8" to 12" (0.95cm to 30cm) for 5.5mm-diameter imager head				
Resolution	JPG images (640x480)				
	AVI videos (320 x 240)				
Operating Temperature	Main Unit: 0°C to 55°C (ambient)				
	Cable: -10°C to 70°C				
Storage Temperature	-20°C to 75°C (ambient)				
Waterproof	Imager head and cable to 1m				

Item	Description	
Weight	0.3 kg for 8.5 mm diameter imager head	
	0.2 kg for 5.5 mm diameter imager head	

18.2 Operations

Before opening the MaxiVideo application, the imager head cable must be connected to the tablet through the USB port. Install the correct imager head accessories according to the specific needs.

The imager head cable can be bent into any shape to access confined or awkward spaces.

> To take images using the MaxiVideo application

- 1. Connect the imager head cable to the USB port on the top of the tablet.
- 2. Tap the **MaxiVideo** icon to open the application interface. The imager head camera is used by default.
- 3. Select the Camera icon in the lower right corner.
- 4. Adjust the imager head cable to focus on the target area.
- 5. Tap the blue ring on the screen. The target area is captured and auto-saved.
- 6. Tap the thumbnail in the upper right corner and slide the screen left or right to view the saved images.
- 7. To edit an image, tap it and the toolbar appears.
- 8. Select the corresponding button to **Share**, **Delete**, or **Edit** the image.
- 9. To exit MaxiVideo, tap Back or Home in the bottom navigation bar.
- > To record a video using the MaxiVideo application
 - 1. Connect the imager head cable to the USB port on the top of the tablet.
 - 2. Tap the **MaxiVideo** icon to open the application interface. The imager head camera is used by default.
 - 3. Select the **Video** icon in the lower right corner.
 - 4. Adjust the imager head cable to focus on the target area.
 - 5. Tap the red ring on the screen to start recording.
 - 6. Tap the red circle again to stop recording. The recorded video is automatically saved.
 - 7. Tap the thumbnail in the upper right corner to review the recorded video.
 - 8. To edit the video, tap it and the toolbar appears.
 - 9. Select the corresponding button to Share, Delete, or Edit the video.

19 MaxiMall

MaxiMall is an online mall for purchasing MaxiSys software subscription updates and other value-added services.

19.1 Operations

Via MaxiMall, users can easily update their software subscriptions and extend their warranties. The software updates extend vehicle coverage and ensure that your MS909 tablet and VCI have the latest features and functions.

19.1.1 MaxiMall Homepage

The MaxiMall application is easy to access. Tap the MaxiMall icon, then enter the MaxiMall homepage.



Figure 19-1 MaxiMall Homepage

Please read information and order buttons carefully before purchasing Renew subscriptions.

- 1. **Personal Center** displays your account information, your Autel equipment, and previous orders
- 2. Product Name the name and model of the Autel device you own
- 3. SN the serial number of the device for identification

- 4. **Valid Date** reminds you of the effective period of the MaxiSys MS909 software before a new version is released
- Blue Button provides conditional access to new software or value-added services for specific devices (For example, when you tap Renew, you can renew the software by adding it to cart for settlement, as Figure 19-2 shows.)



Figure 19-2 Renew Software

6. **Cart** – contains items selected for purchase.

19.1.2 To Make an Order in MaxiMall

Take Renew as an example to make an order:

- 1. Tap the **Renew** button as shown in **Figure 19-1**.
- 2. Select the desired software and add it to your shop cart.
- 3. Tap the **Cart** icon on the right side to enter the **Cart** page.
- 4. Tap the check box before the item you want to purchase, or tap **Select all** if you want to buy all the added items. Tap the blue **Settlement** button to proceed.
- 5. In the **Order Details** page, check your personal information, such as Nick Name, Phone Number, Address, and the total cost of purchase. Tap **Submit Order** (**Figure 19-3**).



Figure 19-3 Order Details

19.1.3 Personal Center

Personal Center is a crucial module for dealing with your orders. On the top of Personal Center, the personal information is matched with your Autel ID. Please check and ensure that the information is correct.

*	Personal Center	A
NickName: chrbborchbrhbhra Address: chrbhcbh crbcrbch cr@crbjcfrbjfbruf	b PhoneNumber: crhounir xeixnelex fro tvoror xdoohro rfhrf njffjr rjr dj ddurburbo to	:ucrc edx@hr
My Equipment.		
My Order		
Software update		Notada
		Exit Login
	Ø Ø 🖬 🏦 VCI 🔗 🚮	\$ \$184_1

Figure 19-4 Personal Center

The following three entries are **My Equipment**, **My Order**, and **Software update** respectively. **My Equipment** lists the tools and tablets you already own; **Software update** shows MaxiMall application updates available; **My Order** lists your orders and the status of each.

To exit, tap the red Exit Login button in the lower right corner.

19.1.4 My Order

Tap the right arrow in the **My Order** entry to enter the **My Order** page. Four tabs display on top of the window.

19.1.4.1 All Orders

Choose the **All** tab, and you will see all the orders in **Completed** or **Incompleteness** status.

Each order starts with the Order Number and Product name. On the right side of each order, the status, price of each item in the order, total number of items, and total cost. The Order status button displays in blue.

For completed orders, the button shows Details; for uncompleted orders, there are two

+			My Order	-
All	Incompletene SS	Completed	Lapse	
Order Numbers	JC67038353			Incompletene
MaxiSys China. MaxiSYSV0960	_EN 00000240			USD 895.0
				Total 1 Items Total: USD 695
				Cancel Settlement
Order Number:F	RL74741672			Incompletene
MaxiSys CV_ N MaxiSys CVDSI	orth America 8G00000023			usp 1.295 (
				Total 1 items Total: USD 1295
				Cancel Settlement
Order Number:/	AZ85912871			Incompletene
MX808_Basic MX808DR7G60	701049			USD T2A

buttons - Cancel in gray and Settlement in blue.

Figure 19-5 My Orders

19.1.4.2 Incompleteness

Choose the **Incompleteness** tab, and you will see orders that are not completed. You can tap either **Cancel** or **Settlement** to continue with purchase.

1		My Order			-
		Lapse	Completed	Incompletene SS	All
Incompletenes				per:JC67038353	Drder Numb
USD 895.0				Ina_EN	MaxiSys Chi
Total T items Total: USD 895.				990000240	MUXIGYAVUS
Cancel	c				
Incompletenes				per:RL74741672	Order Numb
USD 1 295.0				North America	MaxiSys CV
Total Titems Total: USD 1295.	Te			05860000023	MaxiSys CV
Cancel Settlement	c				
Incompletenes				er:AZ85912871	Order Numb
USD 174.50				sic. G60101849	MX808_Bas
5 . 3 9 176					

Figure 19-6 Incomplete Orders

19.1.4.3 Completed

The **Completed** tab page shows the completed orders. You can tap the **Details** button to check the order details.

-			My Order		*
All	Incompletene ss	Completed	Lapse		
Order Number	r:YU44500216				Completed
AP200_GM MaxIAP AP20	0CAP200000151				UED 21.00
				Total 1 Rema	Total: USD 21.9
					Details
Order Number	r:0W04450473				Completed
Hyunda i MaxiAP AP20	00CAP200000151				USD 21.9
				Total 1 items	Total: USD 21,9
					Details
Order Number	r:AL80159689				Complete
AP200_Chery MaxIAP AP20	00CAP200000151				USB et B
AP200_Chery MaxIAP AP20	0CAP200000151			⇔ _•	050 21

Figure 19-7 Completed Orders

19.1.4.4 Lapse

The **Lapse** tab page shows canceled orders.

+	My Order	*
All Incompletene Completed	Lapse	
Order Number:MT08650422		Lapse
Diag_Link_JAGUAR/LAND ROVER Diag_Link/ML1500000037		USD/10.00
Diag_Link_GM Diag_LinkML150000037		USD 10.00
Diag_Link_HOLDEN/FORD AU Diag_LinkML1500000037		U80 10.00
Diag_Link_SUZUKI/ISUZU Diag_LinkML1500000037		1600.00
Diag_Link_MITSUBISHI Diag_LinkML1500000037		USD 10.00
Diag_Link_FORD Diag_LinkML:1500000037		USD10.00
Diag_Link_CHRYSLER Diag_LinkML1500000037		650 (2.00
Diag_Link_PEUGEOT/CITROEN		LISD 1D 00

Figure 19-8 Lapse
20 Maintenance and Service

To ensure that the tablet and the combined VCI unit perform at their optimum level, we advise that the product maintenance instructions in this section are strictly followed.

Maintenance Instructions

The following includes how to maintain your devices, together with precautions to take.

- Use a soft cloth dampened with alcohol or mild glass cleaner to clean the tablet touchscreen at the end of each work day.
- Do not use any abrasive cleansers, detergent, or automotive chemicals on the tablet.
- Keep the devices in dry conditions and within specified operating temperatures.
- Dry your hands before using the tablet. The touchscreen of the tablet may not work when it is moist, or when you tap the touchscreen with wet hands.
- Do not store the devices in humid, dusty or dirty areas.
- Check the housing, wiring, and connectors for dirt and damage before and after each use.
- Do not attempt to disassemble your tablet or the VCI unit.
- Do not drop or cause severe impact to the devices.
- Use only authorized battery chargers and accessories. Any malfunction or damage caused by the use of unauthorized battery charger or accessories will void the limited product warranty.
- Ensure that the battery charger does not contact conductive objects.
- Do not use the tablet beside microwave ovens, cordless phones and certain medical or scientific instruments to prevent signal interference.

Troubleshooting Checklist

- A. When the tablet does not work properly:
 - Make sure the tablet has been registered online.
 - Make sure the system software and diagnostic application are properly updated.
 - Make sure the tablet is connected to the Internet.
 - Check all cables, connections, and indicators to see if the signal is being received.

- B. When battery life is shorter than usual:
 - This may happen when you are in an area with low signal strength. Turn off your device if it is not in use.
- C. When you cannot turn on the tablet:
 - Make sure the battery is charged or the tablet is connected to a power source.
- D. When you are unable to charge the tablet:
 - Your charger maybe out of order. Contact your nearest dealer.
 - You may be attempting to use the device in an overly hot/cold temperature. Charge the device in a temperate area.
 - Your device may not be connected to the charger properly. Check the connector.

⊘NOTE

If the problems persist, please contact Autel customer service or your local selling agent.

About Battery Usage

Your tablet is powered by a built-in lithium-ion polymer battery, which enables you to recharge your battery when there is electricity left.

The built-in lithium-ion polymer battery is factory-replaceable only; incorrect replacement or tampering with the battery pack may cause an explosion.

- Do not use a damaged battery charger.
- Do not disassemble, open, crush, bend, deform, puncture, or shred the battery.
- Do not modify, remanufacture or attempt to insert foreign objects into the battery, or expose the battery to fire, explosion, or other hazards.
- Only use the specified charger and USB cables. Use of non-Autel-authorized charger or USB cables may lead to device malfunction or failure.
- Use of an unqualified battery or charger may present a risk of fire, explosion, leakage, or other hazards.
- Avoid dropping the tablet. If the tablet is dropped, especially on a hard surface, and you suspect damage, take the tablet to a service center for inspection.
- Try to keep closer to your wireless router to reduce battery usage.
- The time needed to recharge the battery varies depending on the remaining battery capacity.
- Battery life inevitably shortens over time.

- Unplug the charger once the tablet is fully charged since overcharging may shorten battery life.
- Keep the battery in temperate environments. Do not place it inside a car when it is too hot or too cold, which may reduce the capacity and life of the battery.

Service Procedures

This section provides information on technical support, repair service, and application for replacement or optional parts.

Technical Support

If you have any question or problem on product operations, please contact us.

AUTEL NORTH AMERICA

- Phone: 855-AUTEL-US (855-288-3587) Monday-Friday 9am-6pm EST
- Website: <u>www.autel.com</u>
- Email: <u>ussupport@autel.com</u>
- Address: 175 Central Avenue, Suite 200, Farmingdale, New York, USA 11735

AUTEL EUROPE

- **Phone**: 0049 (0) 61032000522
- Website: <u>www.autel.eu</u>
- Email: sales.eu@autel.com, support.eu@autel.com
- Address: Robert-Bosch-Strasse 25, 63225, Langen, Germany

AUTEL CHINA HQ

- **Phone**: 0086-755-86147779
- Website: <u>www.autel.com</u>
- Email: <u>support@autel.com</u>
- Address: 7th, 8th and 10th floor, Building B1, Zhiyuan, Xueyuan Road, Xili, Nanshan, Shenzhen, 518055, China.

AUTEL SOUTH AMERICA

- **Phone**: (+507) 308-7566
- Website: <u>www.autel.com/es</u>
- Email: sales.latin@autel.com, latsupport@autel.com

 Address: Office 103, Building 3845, International Business Park, Veracruz, Panamá Pacífico, Panamá.

AUTEL AUSTRALIA

- Phone: 03 9480 2978 / +61 476293327
- Website: <u>www.autel.com.au</u>
- Email: <u>sales@autel.com.au</u>
- Address: 155 Islington Street, Melbourne, Collingwood, VIC 3066

For technical assistance in other markets, please contact your local selling agent.

Repair Service

If it is necessary to send back your device for repair, please download and fill out the repair service form from <u>www.autel.com</u>. The following information must be included:

- Contact name
- Return address
- Telephone number
- Product name
- Complete description of the problem
- Proof-of-purchase for warranty repairs
- Preferred method of payment for non-warranty repairs

NOTE

For non-warranty repairs, payment can be made with Visa, Master Card, or with approved credit terms.

Send the device to your local agent, or to the address below:

6th-10th Floor, Building B1, Zhiyuan,

Xueyuan Road, Xili, Nanshan,

Shenzhen, 518055, China

Other Services

You can purchase the accessories directly from authorized tool suppliers of Autel, or your local distributor or agent.

Your purchase order should include the following information:

- Contact information
- Product or part name

- Item description
- Purchase quantity

21 Compliance Information

FCC Compliance

FCC ID: WQ8MAXISYSMS909

This equipment has been tested and verified to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

This device complies with part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions:

(1) This device may not cause harmful interference, and

(2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

Changes or modifications not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

SAR:

The radiated output power of this device is below the FCC radio frequency exposure limits. Nevertheless, the device should be used in such a manner that the potential for human contact is minimized during normal operation.

The exposure standard for wireless devices employs a unit of measurement known as the Specific Absorption Rate, or SAR. The SAR limit set by the FCC is 1.6 W/Kg. Tests for SAR are conducted using standard operating positions accepted by the FCC with the device transmitting at its highest certified power level in all tested frequency bands. Although the SAR is determined at the highest certified power level, the actual SAR level of the device while operating can be well below the maximum value. This is because the device is designed to operate at multiple power levels to use only the power required to reach the network. To avoid the possibility of exceeding the FCC radio frequency exposure limits, human proximity to antenna should be minimized.

The highest SAR value for this model phone when worn on the body, as described in this user guide, is **0.660W/Kg**(Body-worn measurements differ among phone models, depending upon available accessories and FCC requirements).

22 Warranty

22.1 12-Month Limited Warranty

Autel Intelligent Technology Corp., Ltd. (the Company) warrants to the original retail purchaser of this MaxiSys Diagnostic Device that should this product or any part thereof during normal usage and under normal conditions be proven defective in material or workmanship that results in product failure within twelve (12) months period from the date of purchase, such defect(s) will be repaired, or replaced (with new or rebuilt parts) with Proof of Purchase, at the Company's option, without charge for parts or labor directly related to the defect(s).

The Company shall not be liable for any incidental or consequential damages arising from the use, misuse, or mounting of the device. Some states do not allow limitation on how long an implied warranty lasts, so the above limitations may not apply to you.

This warranty does not apply to:

- a) Products subjected to abnormal use or conditions, accident, mishandling, neglect, unauthorized alteration, misuse, improper installation or repair or improper storage;
- b) Products whose mechanical serial number or electronic serial number has been removed, altered or defaced;
- c) Damage from exposure to excessive temperatures or extreme environmental conditions;
- Damage resulting from connection to, or use of any accessory or other product not approved or authorized by the Company;
- e) Defects in appearance, cosmetic, decorative or structural items such as framing and non-operative parts.
- f) Products damaged from external causes such as fire, dirt, sand, battery leakage, blown fuse, theft or improper usage of any electrical source.

IMPORTANT

All contents of the product may be deleted during the process of repair. You should create a back-up copy of any contents of your product before delivering the product for warranty service.